
1 | P a g e 

Village of East Dundee
    PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, June 7, 2021 

6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Pledge of Allegiance

4. Public Comment on Agenda Items Only
Please keep comments to 5 minutes or less

5. Consent Agenda

a. Motion to Approve the Regular Village Board Meeting Minutes dated May 17, 2021
b. Motion to Approve the Special Village Board Meeting Minutes dated May 24, 2021
c. Motion to Approve a Reduction in the Letter of Credit Held by PAL Land, LLC for

the 250 Patricia Site Improvement Project to $171,142.97

6. Other Agenda Items

a. Police Officer Kevin Lawson Life Saving Award
b. Motion to Approve an Ordinance Approving a Variation Requiring that a Side Yard

Abutting a Street is not to be Less than 30 Feet in Depth to Allow for the Side Yard to
be One (1) Foot in Depth in the R-2 Single Family District for the Property Located at
511 Barrington Avenue, East Dundee, Illinois

c. Motion to Approve an Ordinance Approving a Special Use Permit for a Childcare
Center in the B-3 General Service Business District for the Property Located at 460
Dundee Avenue, East Dundee, Illinois

d. Discussion and Consideration of the FY 2022 Dundee Crossing BDD Façade Grant
Applications Received and Motion to Award FY 2022 Dundee Crossings BDD
Façade Grants to Mockingbird Bar and Garden, Lifeline Plumbing, The Distance
Social, and Zeller Marketing

e. Discussion Regarding Frank Scarpelli as Village Trustee
f. Motion to Authorize the Purchase of Two 2021 Ford Utility Police Interceptor

Vehicles Complete with Vehicle and Emergency Equipment in the Amount of

This meeting will be held as in-person only

     Police Station 2nd Floor Meeting Room
115 E. 3rd Street, East Dundee, Illinois 60118



2 | P a g e 

$111,555.06 
g. Discussion Regarding Zoom Participation for In-Person Meetings
h. Motion to Approve an Ordinance Approving an Employment Agreement for the 

Village Administrator

7. Financial Reports
a. Warrants List FY21 $21,158.92
b. Warrants List FY22 $81,565.40

8. Village President and Board Reports

9. Staff Reports

10. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items
Please keep comments to 5 minutes or less and relevant to Village Business

11. Executive Session
Closed to the public and media under the provisions of the Illinois Open Meetings Act,
5ILCS, 120/2, (c)(21) Discussion of Minutes, (c)(11) Pending Litigation, (c)(1) Personnel
and Legal Counsel, (c)(5) Acquisition of Property, (c)(6) Sale of Property and (c)(3)
Appointments.

a. Minutes
b. Personnel

12. Adjournment



Regular Village Board Meeting 
Village of East Dundee 

Kane County, Illinois 
      May 17, 2021 

1 
CALL TO ORDER 
President Lynam calls to order the Village of East Dundee Regular Village Board Meeting at 6:00 p.m.    
  
ROLL CALL: 
Trustees Mahony, Andresen, Kunze, Brittin, Saviano and President Lynam. 
 
Also in attendance: Administrator Jennifer Johnsen, Assistant Administrator Brad Mitchell, Finance Director 
Brandiss Martin, Village Attorney Greg Smith, Police Chief George Carpenter, Public Works Director Phil 
Cotter, Village Engineer Joe Heinz, Management Analyst Amanda Rafter and Clerk Katherine Diehl. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (Agenda items only):   None 
 
President Lynam stated that he would like to remove Agenda Item C (Motion to Declare a Vacancy in the 
Office of Village Trustee Held by Scott Andresen Due to a Failure of a Person to Qualify to Fill the Office). 
He advised that he had requested to include this item on the agenda and would like to remove it at this time.  
 
AGENDA ITEMS: 
 

a. Motion to Give Advice and Consent to the Appointment by the Village President of Rich 
Treiber to the Office of Village Trustee, to Fill the Seat Vacated by Jeffrey Lynam, for a Term 
Through May 1, 2023, and Until His Successor is Elected and has Qualified. 

 
Motion to Give Advice and Consent to the Appointment by the Village President of Rich Treiber to the 
Office of Village Trustee, to Fill the Seat Vacated by Jeffrey Lynam, for a Term Through May 1, 2023, and 
Until His Successor is Elected and has Qualified by Kunze/Mahony. 
Roll:  Ayes – 5 – Trustees Mahony, Andresen, Kunze, Brittin and Saviano. Nays – 0.  Absent – 0. Motion 
carries. 
 

b. Swearing in of Village Trustee Rich Treiber 
 

Clerk Diehl swears in Trustee Treiber. 
 

c. Motion to Declare a Vacancy in the Office of Village Trustee Held by Scott Andresen Due to a 
Failure of a Person to Qualify to Fill the Office 

 
This item was pulled from the agenda by President Lynam earlier in the meeting. 

 
d. Motion to Give Advice and Consent to the Appointment by the Village President of Frank 

Scarpelli to the Office of Village Trustee, to Fill the Seat Vacated by Scott Andresen, to Serve 
Term Through May 1, 2023, and Until His Successor is Elected and has Qualified 

 
Discussion: 
Trustee Kunze asked why a motion is needed to appoint a Trustee if the motion to declare a vacancy for the 
seat was pulled from the agenda. President Lynam responded that he believes the seat is already vacant and 
the motion to declare it as such is not necessary. Trustee Mahony said that the legal opinion issued by 
Attorney Smith states differently. 
 



Regular Village Board Meeting 
Village of East Dundee 

Kane County, Illinois 
      May 17, 2021 

2 
Motion to Give Advice and Consent to the Appointment by the Village President of Frank Scarpelli to the 
Office of Village Trustee, to Fill the Seat Vacated by Scott Andresen, to Serve Term Through May 1, 2023, 
and Until His Successor is Elected and has Qualified by Treiber. Motion not seconded. Motion fails. 

 
e. Swearing in of Village Trustee Frank Scarpelli 

 
This agenda item will not move forward due to the previous item failing. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:     
 

a. Motion to Approve the Special Village Board Meeting Minutes dated April 26, 2021 
b. Motion to Approve the Regular Village Board Meeting Minutes May 3, 2021 
c. Motion to Approve the Special Village Board Meeting Minutes dated May 10, 2021 
d. Motion to Approve a Resolution Adding Village President & Finance Director/Treasurer 

as an Authorized Signatory on Certain Bank Accounts of the Village of East Dundee, 
Illinois 

e. Motion to Approve an Ordinance Extending Waivers of Certain Water and Sewer Service 
Late Fees and Shutoff Requirements in Chapters 51 and 53 of the Village of East Dundee 
Village Code Through the Duration of the Covid-19 Pandemic 

f. Motion to Approve an Ordinance Authorizing a First Amendment to the Development 
Agreement by and Between the Village of East Dundee and Speedway LLC for the 
Development of Part of Lot 5 in Terra Business Park (Speedway LLC) 

g. Motion to Approve an Ordinance Approving the Final Plat of Patricia Lane Resubdivision 
 
Motion to approve the consent agenda by Mahony/Andresen.  
Roll:  Ayes – 6 – Trustees Mahony, Andresen, Kunze, Brittin, Saviano and Treiber. Nays – 0.  Absent – 0. 
Motion carries. 
 
OTHER AGENDA ITEMS:    
 

a. Motion to Approve or to Deny an Ordinance for a Special Use for a Motor Vehicle Dealer – 
Used Only Located at 212-214 Dundee Avenue, East Dundee, IL 60118 in the B-3 Service 
Business District 

 
Motion to Approve an Ordinance for a Special Use for a Motor Vehicle Dealer – Used Only Located at 212-
214 Dundee Avenue, East Dundee, IL 60118 in the B-3 Service Business District and to include the 
conditions provided by Staff and recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission by Mahony/Brittin. 
 
Discussion: 
The applicant stated that he is agreeable to the conditions that were provided by staff and recommended by 
the Planning and Zoning Commission. Trustee Mahony commented that she would rather have all used car 
businesses grouped together rather than spread out to another area on its own. Trustee Andresen agreed with 
Trustee Mahony’s comment of keeping used car dealers in one area. Frank Scarpelli, Planning and Zoning 
Commissioner, advised that the Commission resulted in a split decision vote and may have partially been 
based on the grandfathered use to allow for residential use on that property. The applicant has advised that 
his father plans to reside in the home on the property. Attorney Smith explained that the residential use on 
the property is a legal, non-confirming use. The Village’s zoning ordinance states that residential use is 
discontinued if it becomes abandoned for 180 days. It may not be reestablished after the discontinued use.   
 
Roll:  Ayes – 6 – Trustees Mahony, Andresen, Kunze, Brittin, Saviano and Treiber. Nays – 0.  Absent – 0. 
Motion carries. 



Regular Village Board Meeting 
Village of East Dundee 

Kane County, Illinois 
      May 17, 2021 

3 
b. Discussion and Consensus on the Design of the Bike Parking Signs and Parking Lot Signs 

 
Assistant Administrator Mitchell presented proposed signage to help direct bicyclists to park their vehicles in 
the parking lot behind the Caboose. Trustee Andresen stated that he would like this parking information to be 
communicated on the Village’s website and promotional materials. Trustee Kunze added that he would also 
like this communication advertised on the bike trail. He suggested adding a bicycle repair station on the bike 
trail adjacent to the Depot. He provided information to staff of a company that makes these repair stations. 
He also presented an idea to install a post near a downtown intersection that would include signs with 
business names, possibly purchased by participating businesses. He stated that there is a trail map currently 
located on the bike path on the south side of Route 72. He said it would be better served at a location 
downtown. Administrator Johnsen stated that the cost would likely be minimal and is within the spending 
authority for the bike repair station. She said the other business signage could be part of the downtown and 
entryway signage discussion by the General Committee. There is $50,000 budgeted for this. Trustee Mahony 
suggested combining the two signs at the parking lot entrance into one, longer sign. 
 
There was consensus of the Board to clarify the signage at the lot entrance and combine into one sign, install 
a bike repair kit at the Depot and to inquire about relocating the bike trail map. 
 

c. Selection of Beer/Wine Vendors for Wine Down Wednesdays, Thirsty Thursdays, and 
Oktoberfest 

 
Assistant Administrator Mitchell stated that selections for beer/wine and food vendors for the event season 
are based on the recommendation of staff from the applications received. He presented the selections to the 
Board. There was some discussion on the selection process.  
 
Motion to Approve the Beer/Wine Vendors for Wine Down Wednesdays, Thirsty Thursdays, and 
Oktoberfest as recommended by Staff by Mahony/Andresen. 
Roll:  Ayes – 6 – Trustees Mahony, Andresen, Kunze, Brittin, Saviano and Treiber. Nays – 0.  Absent – 0. 
Motion carries. 
 

d. Planning and Zoning Commission Discussion 
 
Trustee Andresen questioned if it the Planning and Zoning functions would be better expedited and 
streamlined at a Village Board or subcommittee level. Attorney Smith explained that as a Home Rule Unit, 
the Village has discretion to decide a zoning process and who may hold the hearings and how the hearing 
findings are brought forward for final determination. He offered to put together examples of various options 
that other municipalities are doing. President Lynam stated that he feels the Commission provides a useful 
service and is in favor of retaining a second independent body for review and perspective on items that will 
be brought before the Board.  
 
There was consensus of the Board to have Attorney Smith research options that other municipalities are 
doing. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS:    
 

A. Warrants List FY21 $267,409.55 
B. Warrants List FY22 $435,343.90 

 
 
 
 



Regular Village Board Meeting 
Village of East Dundee 

Kane County, Illinois 
      May 17, 2021 

4 
REPORTS: VILLAGE PRESIDENT and BOARD 
 
Lynam:  Reported that Bill Zelsdorf has offered to work at the Visitor’s Center Monday through Friday for 4 
hours per day. Zelsdorf advised that the Depot will now be staffed on the weekends since the weekend 
market season has begun. Trustee Mahony commented that she would like the Visitor’s Center open and 
staffed all day. Administrator Johnsen reported that she met with Stephen Pickett, Visitor’s Center Board 
Member, about 6 months ago and he advised that there were funds available for this year. She asked Pickett 
to present the request to the Visitor’s Center Board and then present the need and request to the Village. In 
the meantime, the Police Department has been opening and closing the public bathrooms. 
Next, President Lynam reported that he will be speaking with independent counsel about a couple of the 
issues that have come up before the board. Trustee Kunze stated that the Board would have to approve 
paying for independent counsel. Trustee Andresen stated that independent counsel was unnecessary because 
the village attorney already provided his opinion.  
Mahony:  Reminded that the first Thirsty Thursday event is on May 27 and the Memorial Day Parade is on 
May 30. Mahony also informed that Mary Kay Bocain’s husband has passed away and his memorial service 
is on June 19. Mrs. Bocain had video recorded the Village Board meetings for a long period of time. 
Andresen:  Reported that several individuals have contacted him about issues with dust blowing up from the 
gravel lot in the center of the downtown. He stated that he has witnessed this as well since he works and lives 
near the lot. He said that the businesses on River Street have been cleaning their windows excessively. He 
asked if this could be addressed by Section 93 of the Village Code dealing with Nuisances. Administrator 
Johnsen stated that staff will look into the Property Maintenance Code as well.  
Kunze:   Reported that Dairy Queen has not had any issue with discolored water for the past couple of 
weeks. Public Works Director Cotter advised that some adjustments have been made at the water treatment 
plant to help mitigate the discolored water.  
Saviano: None   
Brittin:   None 
Treiber:   None 
 
REPORTS:  STAFF 
 
Village Administrator:  Johnsen reported that Trustee Treiber went through an orientation last Friday with 
department head staff. Next, she reported that IDOT just executed the final IGA for the Christina Drive 
traffic signal. This will be going out to bid and the bid award should appear on the Village Board meeting 
agenda on June 21.  
Assistant Village Administrator:   Mitchell asked the Board if they are in favor of eliminating the $1 
wristband charge at the event. He advised that it is not a money maker and can be inconvenient for those not 
carrying cash. He said that it also may draw in more people. There was consensus of the Board to forego the 
$1 charge.  
Village Attorney:   None  
Village Engineer:   None 
Police Chief:   None 
Public Works Director:  Cotter reported that the hanging flower baskets were hung downtown this 
morning. 
Building Official:  None  
Finance Director:   None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (Items not on the Agenda):   None 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Yes 
 



Regular Village Board Meeting 
Village of East Dundee 

Kane County, Illinois 
      May 17, 2021 

5 
Motion to adjourn the Regular Village Board meeting to Executive Session for (c)(21) Discussion of 
Minutes, (c)(11) Pending Litigation, (c)(1) Personnel, (c)(5) Acquisition of Property, (c)(6) Sale of Property 
and (c)(3) Appointments at 8:00 p.m. by Andresen/Mahony. 
Roll:  Ayes – 7 – Trustees Mahony, Andresen, Kunze, Brittin, Saviano, Treiber and President Lynam. Nays – 
0.  Absent – 0. Motion carries. Meeting adjourns. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Katherine Diehl 
 
      By:  __________________________________  
          Village President, Jeffrey J. Lynam 
Attest: __________________________________ 
 Village Clerk, Katherine Diehl 



Special Village Board Meeting 
Village of East Dundee 

Kane County, Illinois 
May 24, 2021 

1 
CALL TO ORDER 
President Lynam calls to order the Village of East Dundee Special Village Board Meeting at 6:00 p.m.    
  
ROLL CALL: 
Trustees Mahony, Andresen, Kunze, Brittin, Saviano, Treiber and President Lynam.  
 
Also in attendance: Associate Village Attorney Lance Malina and Clerk Katherine Diehl. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (Agenda items only):   None 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:   None 
 
OTHER AGENDA ITEMS:    
 

a. Motion to Waive the Attorney-Client Privilege for the Village Attorney Opinion Letter 
Titled “Vacancies in the Office of Village Trustee,” Dated April 22, 2021 

 
Motion to Waive the Attorney-Client Privilege for the Village Attorney Opinion Letter Titled “Vacancies in 
the Office of Village Trustee,” Dated April 22, 2021 by Kunze/Mahony. 
 
Discussion: 
Trustee Andresen asked if the Village should include a cover letter with language clarifying that the Village 
is waiving attorney-client privilege for these specific letters only and not waiving any other privileges or 
rights of confidentiality otherwise. Attorney Malina stated that he does not feel it was strictly necessary, but 
the Board may include this if it wishes to do so. Trustee Kunze stated that the opinion letters explain the 
process that occurs when a Trustee seat is open after an election. Attorney Malina added that this letter is 
focused on the fact that the Village was short a Trustee running in the election. The letter describes a vacancy 
that became available when a Trustee seat was vacated when the Trustee took the oath of President. It also 
describes an unfilled seat due to being short a candidate since 3 Trustee seats were open but only two 
Trustees ran, a failure for a successor to qualify. Trustee Treiber asked why the Village would want to waive 
attorney-client privilege of these letters. Kunze explained that President Lynam has called out the entire 
Board and said it is breaking the law, however, the attorney has provided a legal opinion that states quite the 
opposite.  
 
Roll:  Ayes – 6 – Trustees Mahony, Andresen, Kunze, Brittin, Saviano and Treiber. Nays – 0. Absent – 0. 
Motion carries, meeting adjourns. 
 

b. Motion to Waive the Attorney-Client Privilege for the Village Attorney Opinion Letter 
Titled “Declaring Vacancies in the Office of Village Trustee,” Dated May 13, 2021 

 
Motion to Waive the Attorney-Client Privilege for the Village Attorney Opinion Letter Titled “Declaring 
Vacancies in the Office of Village Trustee,” Dated May 13, 2021 by Kunze/Mahony. 
 
Roll:  Ayes – 6 – Trustees Mahony, Andresen, Kunze, Brittin, Saviano and Treiber. Nays – 0. Absent – 0. 
Motion carries, meeting adjourns. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS:   None 
 
 



Special Village Board Meeting 
Village of East Dundee 

Kane County, Illinois 
May 24, 2021 

2 
REPORTS: VILLAGE PRESIDENT and BOARD 
 
Lynam:  None 
Mahony:  Reminded that Thirsty Thursday is on May 27 and the Memorial Day Parade is on May 30 at 2 
p.m. 
Andresen:  None 
Kunze:   None 
Saviano: None   
Brittin:   None 
Treiber:   None 
 
REPORTS:  STAFF 
 
Village Administrator:  None 
Assistant Village Administrator:   None 
Village Attorney:   None  
Village Engineer:   None 
Police Chief:   None 
Public Works Director:  None 
Building Official:  None  
Finance Director:   None 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT (Items not on the Agenda):    None 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:   None 
 
Motion to adjourn the Special Village Board Meeting at 6:22 p.m. by Kunze/Mahony. 
Roll:  Ayes – 7 – Trustees Mahony, Andresen, Kunze, Brittin, Saviano, Treiber and President Lynam. Nays – 
0. Absent – 0. Motion carries, meeting adjourns. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Katherine Diehl 
 
      By:  __________________________________  
          Village President, Jeffrey J. Lynam 
Attest: __________________________________ 
 Village Clerk, Katherine Diehl 



 

 

Consulting Engineers and Professional Land Surveyors 

Gerald L. Heinz & Associates, Inc.   

206 N. River Street • East Dundee, Illinois • Phone (847) 426-4535 • Fax Number (847) 426-4584 
 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

DATE: May 27, 2021 
 

TO: Chris Ranieri, Building Official  AT: East Dundee 
 
FROM: Joseph D. Heinz, P.E. 
 
SUBJECT: 250 Patricia Lane 

Job No. ED-2130 
 
As part of the 250 Patricia Lane Site Improvements project, the owner was required to post a 
performance bond or letter of credit to guarantee the installation of the proposed utilities, landscaping, 
erosion control items, and other miscellaneous site improvements.  Jeff Newing, with Palumbo 
Management, LLC, the developer of the site, has contacted the village requesting the reduction of the letter 
of credit.  The original letter of credit was in the amount of $756,290.90 issued by Republic Bank as 
Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. 2269 (attached). 
 
The majority of the improvements on the Palumbo property have been constructed.  The completed items 
can be reduced to 15% of the estimate and the remaining items are still required to be secured with 110% 
of the estimate.  The revised letter of credit can be reduced to $171,142.97.  The Village board will need to 
approve the reduction of the letter of credit. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc Jennifer Johnsen, Village Administrator 

Phil Cotter, Dir. Of Public Works 







EAST DUNDEE POLICE DEPARTMENT 

DEPARTMENT  
LIFE SAVING AWARD 

Presented To 

Officer Kevin Lawson 

GIVEN IN RECOGNITION OF EXEMPLARY WORK AND FOR THE CREDIT WHICH 
THESE ACTIONS BRING TO THE ENTIRE DEPARTMENT. 

On April 4, 2021, Officer Kevin Lawson responded to a call of a Suicide-Attempt 
on Main Street (21-852).  Upon arrival, he found the victim on his knees and 
elbows with his head on the floor in a pool of blood.   The victim cut both of his 
wrists with a razor blade and later expressed that he was depressed about a pending 
divorce.  Officer Lawson applied two tourniquets to both of the victims’ arms to 
prevent any further blood loss until the paramedics arrived.      

The victim lost a great deal of blood and was transported to the hospital for his 
injuries.  Officer Lawson acted immediately and in large part the victim survived 
due to Officer Lawson’s actions.   

Officer Lawson is commended for his quick response, preparedness, and bravery.  

I want to thank Officer Lawson for his actions on April 4, 2021, which directly led 
to saving a person’s life. 

DATE:   April 29, 2021 

DEPUTY CHIEF ________________________________ 

CHIEF of POLICE_______________________________ 



1 | P a g e

Village Board Meeting Memorandum 

To: Village President and Board of Trustees 

CC: Jennifer Johnsen, Village Administrator  
From: Brad Mitchell, Assistant Village Administrator 

Chris Ranieri, Building Inspector 
Joseph D. Heinz, P.E. 

Subject: 511 Barrington Avenue Variance Request 

Date: June 7, 2021 

BACKGROUND 
The Village received a variance application from the owners of 511 Barrington Avenue 
who would like to install a four (4) foot high fence.  With the property being a corner lot, 
the side yard is considered the front yard and must abide by front yard regulations of 
the Village Code.  The variance requested by the Petitioner was for the height of the 
fence.  After review of the Village Code, staff determined that the height of a fence is 
not an allowable variance, therefore, it is staff’s recommendation, for this specific 
request, to grant a variance to allow the front yard to have a depth less than 30 feet 
which would allow for the requested four (4) foot high fence. If granted the side yard 
would be reduced to 1 foot.  The fence would be +/- seven (7) feet from the sidewalk 
at the south end and +/- 10 feet from the sidewalk at the north end.   

VARIANCE REQUEST (PETITIONER) 

1. Variance from Section 157.033(B)(6)(b)2 of the Zoning Chapter of the East
Dundee Village Code requiring that a side yard abutting a street is not to be less
than 30 feet in depth to allow for the side yard to be one (1) foot in depth.

In order to consider the variance, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered the 
following standards.  The attached application includes the petitioner’s response to these 
standards.  

1. The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be
used only under the conditions allowed by the regulations in that zoning
district.

2. The plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances.
3. The variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.
4. The particular physical surroundings, shape or topographical conditions of the

specific property involved would bring a particular hardship upon the owner as



2 | P a g e

distinguished from a mere inconvenience if the regulations were strictly 
enforced. 

5. The conditions upon which the petition for variation is based would not be
applicable generally to other properly within the same zoning classification.

6. The purpose of the variation is not based exclusively upon a desire to make
more money out of the property.

7. The alleged difficulty or hardship has not been created by any person
presently having an interest in the property.

8. The granting of the variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or
injurious to other property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the
property is located.

9. The proposed variation will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to
adjacent property or substantially increase the danger of fire or otherwise
endanger the public safety or substantially diminish or impair property values
within the neighborhood.

The Commission may require such conditions and restrictions upon the premises 
benefitted by a variation as may be necessary to comply with the standards set forth in 
the Village Code or reduce or minimize the injurious effect of the variation upon other 
property in the neighborhood.  The Planning and Zoning Commission agreed to 
recommend the following minimum conditions that were provided by staff: 

1. The Petitioner shall only erect a four (4) foot high wrought iron, decorative non-
privacy fence as depicted.

2. The Petitioner shall not erect any other structure and/or building, which without
such variance would not be permitted by Village Code, within the 30-foot setback
that would be otherwise required for the side/front yard.

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
At the May 13th Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, the Commission voted to 
recommend approval of the variance request with a vote of 6 to 0 (2 members absent, 1 
vacancy).   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
It is the recommendation of Village staff to approve this variance request with the above 
noted conditions as recommended by Village staff.   

ACTION REQUESTED 
1. Discussion and motion to approve an Ordinance of the Village of East Dundee, Cook

and Kane Counties, Illinois approving a variance from Section 157.033(B)(6)(b)2 of
the Zoning Chapter of the East Dundee Village Code requiring that a side yard abutting
a street is not to be less than 30 feet in depth to allow for the side yard to be one (1)
foot in depth with the recommended conditions.

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Ordinance
2. Variance Application
3. Public Notice
4. Findings of Fact



 471470_1 1

ORDINANCE NUMBER 21-_____ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE VILLAGE OF EAST DUNDEE, COOK AND KANE 
COUNTIES, ILLINOIS, APPROVING A VARIATION REQUIRING THAT A SIDE YARD 
ABUTTING A STREET IS NOT TO BE LESS THAN 30 FEET IN DEPTH TO ALLOW 

FOR THE SIDE YARD TO BE ONE (1) FOOT IN DEPTH IN THE R-2 SINGLE FAMILY 
DISTRICT FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 511 BARRINGTON AVENUE, EAST 

DUNDEE, ILLINOIS WITH THE RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS 

WHEREAS, the Village of East Dundee (“Village”) is a home rule unit of local 
government pursuant to Section 6 of Article VII of the Constitution of the State of Illinois, 
and has the authority to exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its 
government and affairs; and  

WHEREAS, the Applicant is the homeowner of the property located at 511 
Barrington Avenue, East Dundee, Illinois, legally described in Section 2 below (“Subject 
Property”); and  

WHEREAS, the Applicant filed an application with the Village seeking a variation 
from Section 157.033(B)(6)(b)2 of the Zoning Chapter of the East Dundee Village Code 
requiring that a side yard abutting a street is not to be less than 30 feet in depth to allow 
for the side yard to be one (1) foot in depth of the Subject Property as depicted and 
described in the application; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 157.207 of the Village of East Dundee Zoning 
Ordinance (“Zoning Ordinance”) and the Village’s home rule authority, the Village 
President and Board of Trustees of the Village (“Corporate Authorities”) may provide for 
and allow variations to the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance when there are practical 
difficulties or a particular hardship with the strict compliance with the Zoning Ordinance; 
and 

WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing on the Application before the Village’s 
Planning and Zoning Commission was duly given and a public hearing was held on the 
Application on May 13, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the standards set 
forth in Section 157.207 of the Zoning Ordinance for a variation and recommended 
approval of the variation, subject to the conditions in Section 3 below, which 
recommendation and related findings of fact are incorporated herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities have reviewed the Planning and Zoning 
Commission’s findings of fact and recommendations on the Application, and hereby 
approve the proposed variation on the Property, subject to the conditions in Section 3 
below; 



 471470_1     2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees 
of the Village of East Dundee, Kane and Cook Counties, Illinois, as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1: Incorporation. That each Whereas paragraph above is incorporated 
by reference into this Section 1 and made a part hereof as material and operative 
provisions of this Ordinance. 

 
SECTION 2: Variation. The Corporate Authorities hereby approve the Application 

and grant a variation for the Property legally described as: 
 
Tract 1: Lot 3 (Except that part taken for public roadway, more fully described in 
dedication recorded as document 90K53477) in Fred H. Marwig’s subdivision, a 
subdivision of part of the west half of the northwest quarter of section 23, township 
42 North, Range 8, East of the third principal meridian, in the Village of East 
Dundee, Kane County, Illinois.  

 
Tract 2: Parcel one in the Trebes Barrington Avenue subdivision, according to the 
plat thereof recorded October 10, 1990 as document number 90K53478, in the 
Village of East Dundee, Kane County, Illinois 

 
commonly known as 511 Barrington Avenue, East Dundee, Illinois (P.I.N. 03-23-182-029, 
03-23-182-030), subject to the conditions in Section 3 below. 
 

SECTION 3:  Conditions of Approval. That the variation permit granted herein 
shall be constructed, operated and maintained in accordance with any plans and 
diagrams submitted as part of the Application, and shall be subject to the following terms 
and conditions: 

 
1. The Petitioner shall only erect a four (4) foot high wrought iron, decorative non-

privacy fence as depicted.   
 

2. The Petitioner shall not erect any other structure and/or building, which without 
such variance would not be permitted by Village Code, within the 30-foot setback 
that would be otherwise required for the side/front yard. 

 
SECTION 4: Severability. That if any Section, paragraph or provision of this 

Ordinance shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or 
unenforceability of such Section, paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the 
remaining provisions of this Ordinance. 

 
SECTION 5:  Repeal. That all ordinances, resolutions, motions or parts thereof in 

conflict herewith shall be and the same are hereby repealed. 
 
 SECTION 6: Effect. That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith 
upon its adoption, approval and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law.  
  



 471470_1     3 

PASSED this 7th day of June, 2021 pursuant to a roll call vote as follows:  
 
AYES:________________________________________________________________  
 
NAYES:_______________________________________________________________  
 
ABSENT:______________________________________________________________ 
 
 APPROVED by me this 7th day of June, 2021. 
 
 
     ________________________________________  
     Jeffrey Lynam, Village President  
ATTEST:  
 
___________________________  
Katherine Diehl, Village Clerk  
 
Published in pamphlet form this 7th day of June, 2021, under the authority of the Village 
President and Board of Trustees.  
 
Recorded in the Village records on June ___, 2021. 
 
The Applicant acknowledges hereby the reasonableness of the above and foregoing 
terms and conditions in the Ordinance, and hereby accepts the same. 

By: _________________________   
  Applicant 
 
Date: June __, 2021 





















1 
 

 
 
 
 

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 
 

Findings of Fact – Variance 
 
Property Location:  511 Barrington Avenue 
 
Variance requested:  Variance from Section 157.033(B)(6)(b)2. of the Zoning Chapter 

of the East Dundee Village Code requiring that a side yard 
abutting a street is not to be less than 30 feet in depth to allow 
for the side yard to be one (1) foot in depth, with the 
recommended conditions.    

 
Hearing date:   May 13, 2021 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission has made the following findings regarding the 
variation request: 
 

1. The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be 
used only under the conditions allowed by the regulations in that zoning 
district; Circle one; Yes/No/Not Applicable(N.A.), Explain: 
 
 

2. The plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances; Yes/No/N.A. and 
 

 
3. The variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.  

Yes/No/N.A. 
 

For the purpose of supplementing the above standards, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, in making its decision whenever they are practical difficulties or particular 
hardship, shall also take into consideration the extent to which the following facts favorable 
to the applicant, have been established by the evidence that: 
 
 

1. The particular physical surroundings, shape or topographical conditions of the 
specific property involved would bring a particular hardship upon the owner as 
distinguished from a mere inconvenience if the regulations were strictly 
enforced; Yes/No/N.A.  
 
 



2 

2. The conditions upon which the petition for variation is based would be
applicable generally to other property within the same zoning classification;
Yes/No/N.A.

3. The purpose of the variation is not based exclusively upon a desire to make
more money out of the property; Yes/No/N.A.

4. The alleged difficulty or hardship has not been created by any person presently
having an interest in the property; Yes/No/N.A.

5. The granting of the variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or
injurious to other property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the
property is located; Yes/No/N.A.

6. The proposed variation will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to
adjacent property or substantially increase the danger of fire or otherwise
endanger the public safety or substantially diminish or impair property values
within the neighborhood. Yes/No/N.A.

Based on the information contained in the application and the testimony and evidence 
presented at the public hearing, the Planning and Zoning Commission voted on the approval 
of these findings of fact and the requested variation(s) resulting in the following vote:  
____ayes ____nays ____absent____abstain 

Date: __________ ____________________________________ 
Planning and Zoning Commission Chairman 

6 0 2 1 Vacant



1 | P a g e

Village Board Meeting Memorandum 

To: Village President and Board of Trustees 

CC: Jennifer Johnsen, Village Administrator  
From: Brad Mitchell, Assistant Village Administrator 

Chris Ranieri, Building Inspector 
Joseph D. Heinz, P.E. 

Subject: 460 Dundee Avenue Special Use Request – Childcare Center 
Date: June 7, 2021 

BACKGROUND 
The Village received an application for a Special Use from Annalisa Tuluce, owner of 
SERENDIPTY Learning, LLC, to operate a childcare center at 460 Dundee Avenue, East 
Dundee, IL 60118.  This property is located within the B-3 Service Business District. 
Previously, Ideabox Childcare, Inc. operated a childcare facility at this location until its 
closure in 2020.  This premise was improved as a childcare facility previously, therefore, 
no major improvements are needed to be completed.    

The childcare center will operate Monday through Friday from 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 
Children attending will be between the ages of 6 weeks to 12 years old. The proposed 
facility currently has nine (9) classrooms with a large 4,000 square foot outdoor play area 
and a large indoor gym used for events and/or play during inclement weather. The facility 
will have an estimated full capacity of 150 children and will require approximately 20-25 
staff members, which will be more than adequate for DCFS minimum staff/child ratios. 
For security, they will have only the reception door open to the public, all other exterior 
doors will be locked and only accessible to authorized personnel.  They will also install a 
camera system.  Also, the playground door will be secured.   

In order to consider a special use permit, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
considered the following standards.  For each of these standards, the Applicant’s 
responses are provided in italics below. 

1. The special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in
the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially
diminish and impair property values within the neighborhood.

Applicant Response: There will be no negative effect on surrounding property
values.  Our services will add value to surrounding community and will increase
demand for the immediate area.



2 | P a g e

2. The establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly
development and improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in
the district.

Applicant Response: No. Our daycare/childcare services will fit harmoniously
with the surrounding properties.

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or necessary facilities have been or will
be provided.

Applicant Response: Yes.  The existing premise was improved as a daycare
previously.  All roads, drainage utilities and access roads are in place.

4. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so
designed as to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets.

Applicant Response: There won’t be any issues with traffic.  The center has
more than necessary parking and means of ingress and egress in place.

Due to the usual nature of the operation of special uses that may give rise to unique 
problems with respect to their impact upon neighboring property or public facilities, the 
Village may stipulate conditions and restrictions upon the establishment, location, 
construction, maintenance, and operation of the use as deemed necessary for the 
protection of the public interest.  The Planning and Zoning Commission agreed to 
recommend the following minimum conditions that were provided by staff: 

1. The Special Use Permit cannot be transferred and shall expire at such time the
Serendipity Learning, LLC at 460 Dundee Avenue, Dundee, IL 60118 ceases
operations at this location.

2. The applicant shall establish and maintain a plan for a drop-off and pick-up
operations to limited vehicle congestion within the shopping center.

3. The applicant shall remain in compliance with all requirements of the Illinois
Department of Children & Family Services (DCFS).

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
At the May 13th Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, the Commission voted to 
recommend approval of the special use request with a vote of 6 to 0 (2 members absent, 
1 vacancy).   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
As you may recall, the Village Board approved a Special Use request from Ideabox 
Childcare in December 2018.  Given that this Special Use request is to re-open the 
existing childcare facility, it is the recommendation of Village staff to approve this Special 
Use request with the above recommended conditions. 



3 | P a g e

ACTION REQUESTED 
1. Discussion and motion to approve an Ordinance of the Village of East Dundee, Cook

and Kane Counties, Illinois approving a special use permit for a childcare center in the
B-3 General Service Business District for the property located at 460 Dundee Avenue,
East Dundee, Illinois with the recommended conditions.

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Ordinance
2. Special Use Application
3. Public Notice
4. Findings of Fact



 471470_1 1

ORDINANCE NUMBER 21-_____ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE VILLAGE OF EAST DUNDEE, COOK AND KANE 
COUNTIES, ILLINOIS, APPROVING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR A CHILDCARE 

CENTER IN THE B-3 GENERAL SERVICE BUSINESS DISTRICT FOR THE 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 460 DUNDEE AVENUE, EAST DUNDEE, ILLINOIS WITH 

THE RECOMMEDNED CONDITIONS 

WHEREAS, the Village of East Dundee (“Village”) is a home rule unit of local 
government pursuant to Section 6 of Article VII of the Constitution of the State of Illinois, 
and has the authority to exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its 
government and affairs; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 157.224 of the Village of East Dundee Zoning 
Ordinance (“Zoning Ordinance”) and the Village’s home rule authority, the Village 
President and Board of Trustees of the Village (“Corporate Authorities”) may provide for 
and allow the classification of special uses in its zoning ordinances; and 

WHEREAS, under the authority of the Zoning Ordinance, the property at 460 
Dundee Avenue, East Dundee, Illinois (“Property”), as legally described in Section 2 
below, is located in the B-3 General Service Business Zoning District, in which a childcare 
center is allowed if the Corporate Authorities first grant a special use permit, per to Section 
157.050(F)(1)(g)(4) of the Zoning Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Zoning Ordinance, any person owning or having an 
interest in property may file an application to use such property for one or more of the 
special uses provided for in the zoning district in which the land is situated; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities have received a request for a special use 
permit for a childcare center to be operated at the Property (“Application”) from the 
contract purchaser of the Property, Annalisa Tuluce, owner of SERENDIPTY Learning, 
LLC. (“Applicant”); and 

WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing on the Application before the Village’s 
Planning and Zoning Commission was duly given and a public hearing was held on the 
Application on May 13, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the standards set 
forth in Section 157.224 of the Zoning Ordinance for a special use permit and 
recommended approval of the Application, subject to the conditions in Section 3 below, 
which recommendation and related findings of fact are incorporated herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities have reviewed the Planning and Zoning 
Commission’s findings of fact and recommendations on the Application, and hereby 
approve the proposed special use of a childcare center on the Property, subject to the 
conditions in Section 3 below; 



 471470_1 2

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees 
of the Village of East Dundee, Kane and Cook Counties, Illinois, as follows: 

SECTION 1: Incorporation. That each Whereas paragraph above is incorporated 
by reference into this Section 1 and made a part hereof as material and operative 
provisions of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 2: Approval of Special Use Permit. The Corporate Authorities hereby 
approve the Application and grant a special use permit for the Property legally described 
as: 

LOT 2 OF LPC SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE 
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 23, AND PART OF THE NORTHEAST 
QUARTER OF SECTION 26, ALL IN TOWNSHIP 42 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST 
OF THE THIRD PRICIPAL MERIDIAN, IN THE VILLAGE OF EAST DUNDEE, 
KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

commonly known as 460 Dundee Avenue, East Dundee, Illinois (P.I.N. 03-23-479-006), 
for a childcare center, subject to the conditions in Section 3 below. 

SECTION 3:  Conditions of Approval. That the special use permit granted herein 
shall be constructed, operated and maintained in accordance with any plans and 
diagrams submitted as part of the Application, and shall be subject to the following terms 
and conditions: 

1. The Special Use Permit cannot be transferred and shall expire at such time the
Serendipity Learning, LLC at 460 Dundee Avenue, Dundee, IL 60118 ceases
operations at this location.

2. The applicant shall establish and maintain a plan for a drop-off and pick-up
operations to limited vehicle congestion within the shopping center.

3. The applicant shall remain in compliance with all requirements of the Illinois
Department of Children & Family Services (DCFS).

SECTION 4: Severability. That if any Section, paragraph or provision of this 
Ordinance shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or 
unenforceability of such Section, paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the 
remaining provisions of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 5:  Repeal. That all ordinances, resolutions, motions or parts thereof in 
conflict herewith shall be and the same are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 6: Effect. That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith 
upon its adoption, approval and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law.  



 471470_1 3

PASSED this 7th day of June, 2021 pursuant to a roll call vote as follows:  

AYES:________________________________________________________________  

NAYES:_______________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT:______________________________________________________________ 

APPROVED by me this 7th day of June, 2021. 

________________________________________ 
Jeffrey Lynam, Village President  

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
Katherine Diehl, Village Clerk  

Published in pamphlet form this 7th day of June, 2021, under the authority of the Village 
President and Board of Trustees.  

Recorded in the Village records on June ___, 2021. 

The Applicant acknowledges hereby the reasonableness of the above and foregoing 
terms and conditions in the Ordinance, and hereby accepts the same. 

By: _________________________ 
Annalisa Tuluce, Applicant 

Date: June __, 2021 





















1 

VILLAGE OF EAST DUNDEE, ILLINOIS 
Findings of Fact – Special Use 

Property Location: 460 Dundee Avenue, East Dundee, IL 60118 

Special Use requested: A Special Use for the operation of a childcare center located 
at 460 Dundee Avenue, East Dundee, IL 60118 in the B-3 
Service Business District.  

Hearing date: May 13, 2021 

The Planning and Zoning Commission has made the following findings regarding the 
special use request: 

1. The use is not injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially
diminish and impair property values within the neighborhood; Circle one;
Yes/No/Not Applicable(N.A.), Explain:

The proposed use is consistent with existing uses on the property and surrounding
area and is not expected to diminish the value of adjacent and nearby properties.

2. The use will not impede the normal and orderly development and
improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district;
Yes/No/N.A.

The proposed use will not affect the development of other nearby properties.

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or necessary facilities have been
or will be provided; Yes/No/N.A.

This location was previously improved as a childcare center and all utilities and
improvements currently exist.

4. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress
so designed as to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets;
Yes/No/N.A.

The proposed use is located within the shopping center, which provides adequate
ingress and egress to minimize potential vehicle conflicts and congestion in public
streets.  There is adequate parking within the shopping center.  The proposed use
may increase traffic into the site off Route 25 and Route 72 but is not expected to
create traffic congestion or unduly increase traffic.



2 

Based on the information contained in the application and the testimony and evidence 
presented at the public hearing, the Planning and Zoning Commission voted on the 
approval of these findings of fact and the requested special use(s) resulting in the 
following vote:  
____ayes ____nays ____absent____abstain 

Date: __________ ___________________________________ 
Chairman Planning and Zoning Commission 

6 0 2 1 Vacant



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

Village of East Dundee 
120 Barrington Avenue, East Dundee, IL 60118 

(847) 426-2822 
www.eastdundee.net 

 
 

 
To:   Village President and Board of Trustees 
   

From:  Jennifer Johnsen, Village Administrator 
 

Subject: BDD Façade Grant Award 
 

Date:   June 7, 2021 
 

Background 
The FY 2022 Budget includes $100,000 for a 50/50 façade grant program to be paid from the 
Dundee Crossings BDD. Commercial property owners and businesses within the Village’s Dundee 
Crossings BDD were afforded the opportunity to submit a completed application from March 19, 
2021 through May 14, 2021 for this competitive grant process.  Below, please find the program 
purpose and goals established for the façade grant. Attached, please find the grant application 
which includes additional details regarding eligibility, the application process, the reimbursement 
process, and the Dundee Crossing BDD map. 
 
Program Purpose 
The purpose of the Dundee Crossings Commercial Façade Improvement Program (DCCFIP) is to 
encourage property owners to improve the overall exterior appearance of their businesses and 
assist in transforming the Village into one of well cared for and vibrant neighborhoods. DCCFIP 
seeks to accomplish the following: 
• To improve the overall viability and property values of commercial properties to strengthen 

the economy, EAV, and quality of life in the Village. 
• To remove and alleviate adverse conditions by encouraging private investment in the 

rehabilitation and maintenance of owner-occupied properties. 
 
Program Goals (Must meet two of these goals to qualify)  
DCCFIP seeks to ensure that all eligible commercial property owners and businesses have an equal 
opportunity to access support while also allowing for public funds to be invested for the public 
good. The program goals are as follows: 
 
1. Attract, retain, or expand businesses. 
2. Attract or retain jobs. 
3. Enhance the façade along the Dundee Crossings Corridor. 
4. Increase the Village’s tax base by facilitating development of underutilized properties. 
5. Support Village planning initiatives by advancing catalytic projects identified in Village plans. 
6. Provide for the development of public amenities or infrastructure. 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

Village of East Dundee 
120 Barrington Avenue, East Dundee, IL 60118 

(847) 426-2822 
www.eastdundee.net 

 
 

 
7. Encourage development projects that enhance the streetscape and pedestrian experience and 

improve the vitality of commercial districts by adding interest and activity on the first floor of 
mixed-use buildings and parking facilities.  

Applications Received 
In total, the Village received the following four applications: 
 
Mockingbird Bar and Garden 
Address:   217 Barrington Avenue 
Scope of Work:   Louvered Roof Pergola 
Grant Request:  $25,000 
Minimum Bid Received: $81,987 
Goal Fulfilled:   Goal 1: Attract, retain, or expand businesses. 

Goal 3: Enhance façade along Dundee Crossing Corridor 
Goal 7: Encourage projects that enhance the streetscape and 

pedestrian (fulfills portion of Goal 7). 
  
 
Lifeline Plumbing 
Address:   296 Williams Place 
Scope of Work:  Siding, Soffit, and Door Replacement 
Grant Request:  $23,730 
Minimum Bid Received: $47,460 
Goals Fulfilled:  Goal 1: Attract, retain, or expand businesses. 

Goal 3: Enhance façade along Dundee Crossing Corridor 
Goal 7: Encourage projects that enhance the streetscape and 

pedestrian (fulfills portion of Goal 7). 
 
The Distance Social 
Address:   314 N. River Street 
Scope of Work:  Repaint Exterior and New Signage 
Grant Request:  $5,200 
Minimum Bid Received: $10,400 
Goals Fulfilled:  Goal 1: Attract, retain, or expand businesses. 

Goal 3: Enhance façade along Dundee Crossing Corridor 
Goal 7: Encourage projects that enhance the streetscape and 

pedestrian (fulfills portion of Goal 7). 
 
  



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

3 | P a g e  
 

Village of East Dundee 
120 Barrington Avenue, East Dundee, IL 60118 

(847) 426-2822 
www.eastdundee.net 

 
 

 
Zeller Marketing 
Address:   322 N. River Street 
Scope of Work:  Repaint Exterior 
Grant Request:  $5,000 
Minimum Bid Received: $10,000 
Goals Fulfilled:  Goal 1: Attract, retain, or expand businesses. 

Goal 3: Enhance façade along Dundee Crossing Corridor 
Goal 7: Encourage projects that enhance the streetscape and 

pedestrian (fulfills portion of Goal 7). 
 

Village Administrator Recommendation 
In total, $58,930 in grant funding requests were received. Following review of the applications, I 
am recommending that the Village Board award the following BDD Façade Grants as described 
above and attached: 

1. Mockingbird Bar and Garden:  $ 25,000 or 50% of eligible expenses 
2. Lifeline Plumbing:    $ 23,730 or 50% of eligible expenses 
3. The Distance Social:   $  5,200 or 50% of eligible expenses 
4. Zeller Marketing:    $  5,000 or 50% of eligible expenses  

 

Action Requested: Discussion and consideration of the façade grant applications received and 
approval of a motion awarding the FY 20222 Dundee Crossings BDD 
Façade Grants for Mockingbird Bar and Garden, Lifeline Plumbing, The 
Distance Social, and Zeller Marketing. 

Attachments:  Façade Grant Application 
   Mockingbird Bar and Garden Application 
   Lifeline Plumbing Application 
   The Distance Social Application 
   Zeller Marking Application 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
 



 
 
  

Village of East Dundee 
Dundee Crossings Commercial Façade 
Improvement Program (DCCFIP) Policy  

and Application 
 
 

Village of East Dundee 
120 Barrington Avenue 
East Dundee, IL 60118 
Office: (847) 426-2822 

Fax: (847) 426-2956 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purpose, Details and Goals Page 1 
Eligibility and Qualifications Page 2 
Ineligible Projects and Application Process Page 3 
Review, Approval, Reimbursement, Penalties 
and Questions 

Page 4 

Dundee Crossings BDD Map      
Application 

Page 5 
Page 6 

  
 
 



Village of East Dundee, Illinois 

1 

Program Purpose 

The purpose of the Dundee Crossings Commercial Façade Improvement Program (DCCFIP) is to encourage 
property owners to improve the overall exterior appearance of their businesses and assist in transforming the 
Village into one of well cared for and vibrant neighborhoods. 
 
DCCFIP seeks to accomplish the following: 

• To improve the overall viability and property values of commercial properties to strengthen the economy, 
EAV, and quality of life in the Village. 

• To remove and alleviate adverse conditions by encouraging private investment in the rehabilitation and 
maintenance of owner-occupied properties. 

Program Details 

The Village of East Dundee will allocate funds on an annual basis, as budgeted.  Please note all proposed 
property improvements are subject to strict review by Village staff and the Village Board. Grant funding is 
subject to the following conditions: 

• Grant funding shall be administered in the form of reimbursement following the completion of an 
approved project. 

• The grant shall not exceed 50% of all eligible activities or $25,000, whichever is less. 
• The applicant does not have to select the lowest bidder; however, the reimbursement amount will be 

based upon the lowest of the 3 bids received. 
• Properties within the Historic District must receive a Certificate of Appropriateness prior to applying 

for grant funding.  
• Upon approval by the Village Board, applicants must secure a building permit within 60 days and 

adhere to all permit and inspection requirements. 
• Work must be completed by March 31st of the year following approval to receive reimbursement, 

unless an extension is requested and approved by the Village Administrator.  
 
Please see the application for complete program details. 

Program Goals (Must meet two of these goals to qualify)  
DCCFIP seeks to ensure that all eligible commercial property owners and businesses have an equal opportunity 
to access support while also allowing for public funds to be invested for the public good. The program goals 
are as follows: 

• Attract, retain, or expand businesses. 
• Attract or retain jobs. 
• Enhance the façade along the Dundee Crossings Corridor. 
• Increase the Village’s tax base by facilitating development of underutilized properties. 
• Support Village planning initiatives by advancing catalytic projects identified in Village plans. 
• Provide for the development of public amenities or infrastructure. 
• Encourage development projects that enhance the streetscape and pedestrian experience and improve 

the vitality of commercial districts by adding interest and activity on the first floor of mixed-use 
buildings and parking facilities.  



Village of East Dundee, Illinois 

2 

Program Eligibility 

All commercial property owners and business owners of properties within the Dundee Crossing Business 
District are eligible to apply for the DCCFIP. However, the following property owners are not eligible: 

• Property/business owners of properties or structures which are nonconforming uses according to the 
Village’s zoning code. 

• Property/business owners in default of any municipal fees or taxes or property taxes. 
• Property/business owners with outstanding building, zoning, property maintenance, or Village Code 

violations on any properties owned and/or occupied by them within the Village of East Dundee that 
would not otherwise be corrected by applying for the DCCFIP. 

• Property owners or properties who have received Commercial Façade Improvement Program funding 
in the past 7 years. 

• Property owners who are Village officials or employees of the Village of East Dundee. 
 
Eligible projects must meet the following expectations: 

• Project must serve at least two of the program goals (listed in the program goals section). 
• All contractors and work performed must be in compliance with all current building and zoning 

requirements. 
 
Program Qualifications 

The following projects or expenses are eligible for program reimbursement: 

• Restoration of brick using a non-abrasive paint removal material (e.g. corn cob or walnut shell pieces, 
etc.) 

• Façade cleaning 
• New siding and siding repair 
• Front and wrap-around porches 
• Front patios and walkways 
• Decorative masonry walls 
• Exterior cornices 
• Exterior lighting 
• Fences  
• Landscaping retaining walls and improvements 
• Painting 
• Windows and doors 
• Tuckpointing 
• Pitched roofs 
• Awnings/canopies 
• Removal of inappropriate exterior finishes, materials, or features 
• Other improvements not specifically listed as eligible or ineligible and approved by the Village Board 

 
 
 
 



Village of East Dundee, Illinois 

3 

Ineligible Projects 
 
The following projects or expenses are not eligible for program reimbursement: 

 
• Building permit fees and related costs 
• Professional service fees including but not limited to design, engineering, architectural, and structural 

fees 
• Replacement of driveways 
• Replacement of sidewalks in the public right-of-way 
• Flat roofs 
• Landscaping 
• Painting masonry that was not previously painted 
• Sandblasting of brick 
• Acquisition of land and/or buildings 
• New construction 
• Any work not visible from the public right-of-way 
• Any work completed prior to receiving DCCFIP approval must have their application authorized to 

proceed by the Village Administrator 

Program Application Process 

Property owners seeking DCCFIP grant funding shall apply as follows: 

• Applications will be accepted by the Village beginning June 1 of each year and through July 15. A 
complete application must be received by the Village prior to July 15 (electronic copies will not be 
accepted). Submit application to: 
 

Jennifer Johnsen, Village Administrator 
  Village of East Dundee 
  120 Barrington Avenue 
  East Dundee, Illinois 60118 
 

• Application Checklist: The following items must be attached to your application. Applications will be 
considered incomplete until all of the items have been received. 

o Complete DCCFIP application 
o Proof of ownership 
o Proof of property taxes paid 
o Historic District Certificate of Appropriateness or application (if applicable) 
o Photos of commercial structure to be improved 
o Detailed description and sketch/rendering of the work to be performed  

(including building materials and color scheme) 
o Working architectural drawings, if requested. 
o Copies of a minimum of a 3 qualified bids for each portion of the project in which funding is 

being requested 
o Schedule of work to be completed 

 



Village of East Dundee, Illinois 

4 

Program Review and Approval Process 

Applications will be reviewed and approved according to the following process: 

• The Village will evaluate each application for its extent/scope of work proposed and its potential to 
contribute to the specified goals.   

• Following the review process, Village staff will recommend which applications should receive funding 
based upon the adopted budget.  

• The recommendation by Village staff will be provided to the Village Board for their consideration and 
approval during the month of August. The Village of East Dundee retains the right to approve an entire 
request, portions thereof, or to deny the request or portion thereof. 

 
Program Reimbursement 

Project reimbursement will occur upon completion of the project and final inspection by the Village. If costs 
exceed the original estimates, the property owner will be responsible for the full amount of the excess. The 
Village will not reimburse more than the total amount specified in the letter of intent. If any work commences 
before Village Administrator authorization is granted, these costs will not be eligible for reimbursement. The 
following items must be submitted in order to process the reimbursement: 

• Letter requesting reimbursement 
• Final inspection(s) for permitted work 
• Final inspection DCCFIP verifying the work has been completed in accordance with the proposed 

project 
• Copies of all final invoices 
• Signed and notarized waiver(s) of lien on the property 
• Proof of payment (i.e. canceled check, credit card statement, receipt, etc.) 

 
Upon submittal of the following reimbursement materials, reimbursement will be placed on the warrant list 
for approval of the payment by the Village Board. Please note, this process can take up to 4 weeks. 

Program Penalties 

All applicants granted financial support are required to comply with all Village codes and ordinances. Failure to 
do so, as documented by citations issued by the Village of East Dundee, will subject that awardee to all 
applicable fines and penalties allowable under Village code including a reduction in DCCFIP grant funding in 
part or in full.  Any intentional removal or modification to façade improvement within three years, which is not 
in accordance with the approved project, will require reimbursement of awarded funds.  

Questions 

Interested property owners are encouraged to contact the Village prior to submitting an application or for any 
questions about the program. Inquires can be directed to Jennifer Johnsen, Village Administrator, at (847) 
426-2822 x6120 or jjohnsen@eastdundee.net. 

 

 

 



Village of East Dundee, Illinois 

5 

Dundee Crossings Business Development District 

The commercial property must be within the Dundee Crossings Business District to be qualified for DCCFIP 
grant funding.  Please refer to the blue shaded area on the map below or by visiting 
www.eastdundee.net/?page=economic-development.   

 

http://www.eastdundee.net/?page=economic-development


Village of East Dundee, Illinois 

6 

Village of East Dundee 

Dundee Crossings Commercial Façade Improvement Program (DCCFIP) Application 
 

 
Property Owner: ______________________________________________________________________________ 

Address:  ______________________________________________________________________________ 
   Street     City    State  Zip 
 
Historic District:  Yes No  (Circle One) 

Phone Number:    _______________________  Email: _____________________________________________ 

Proposed Project: ______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Project Budget:  __________________________            Reimbursement Request: __________________________ 

Proposed Contractor(s): ______________________________________________________________________________ 

   ______________________________________________________________________________ 

Required Attachments (Check all attached documents): 

 Complete DCCFIP Application 
 Proof of ownership  
 Proof of property taxes paid 
 Historic District Certificate of Appropriateness (if applicable) 
 Photos of residential structure to be improved 
 Detailed description and sketch/rendering of the work to be performed  

(including building materials and color scheme) 
 Working architectural drawings, if requested 
 Copies of a minimum of a 3 qualified bids for each portion of the project in which funding is being requested 
 Schedule of work to be completed 

 

Applicant Signature: ______________________________________________ Date:  ___________________ 

 
Village Official Use 

 
Date Received:  __________________ Application Complete: Yes  No (Circle One) 

Official Signature: _________________________________________________________________   



 
 
  

Village of East Dundee 
Dundee Crossings Commercial Façade 
Improvement Program (DCCFIP) Policy  

and Application 
 
 

Village of East Dundee 
120 Barrington Avenue 
East Dundee, IL 60118 
Office: (847) 426-2822 

Fax: (847) 426-2956 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purpose, Details and Goals Page 1 
Eligibility and Qualifications Page 2 
Ineligible Projects and Application Process Page 3 
Review, Approval, Reimbursement, Penalties 
and Questions 

Page 4 

Dundee Crossings BDD Map      
Application 

Page 5 
Page 6 

  
 
 



Village of East Dundee, Illinois 

1 

Program Purpose 

The purpose of the Dundee Crossings Commercial Façade Improvement Program (DCCFIP) is to encourage 
property owners to improve the overall exterior appearance of their businesses and assist in transforming the 
Village into one of well cared for and vibrant neighborhoods. 
 
DCCFIP seeks to accomplish the following: 

• To improve the overall viability and property values of commercial properties to strengthen the economy, 
EAV, and quality of life in the Village. 

• To remove and alleviate adverse conditions by encouraging private investment in the rehabilitation and 
maintenance of owner-occupied properties. 

Program Details 

The Village of East Dundee will allocate funds on an annual basis, as budgeted.  Please note all proposed property 
improvements are subject to strict review by Village staff and the Village Board. Grant funding is subject to the 
following conditions: 

• Grant funding shall be administered in the form of reimbursement following the completion of an 
approved project. 

• The grant shall not exceed 50% of all eligible activities or $25,000, whichever is less. 
• The applicant does not have to select the lowest bidder; however, the reimbursement amount will be 

based upon the lowest of the 3 bids received. 
• Properties within the Historic District must receive a Certificate of Appropriateness prior to applying for 

grant funding.  
• Upon approval by the Village Board, applicants must secure a building permit within 60 days and 

adhere to all permit and inspection requirements. 
• Work must be completed by March 31st of the year following approval to receive reimbursement, 

unless an extension is requested and approved by the Village Administrator.  
 
Please see the application for complete program details. 

Program Goals (Must meet two of these goals to qualify)  
DCCFIP seeks to ensure that all eligible commercial property owners and businesses have an equal opportunity 
to access support while also allowing for public funds to be invested for the public good. The program goals are 
as follows: 

• Attract, retain, or expand businesses. 
• Attract or retain jobs. 
• Enhance the façade along the Dundee Crossings Corridor. 
• Increase the Village’s tax base by facilitating development of underutilized properties. 
• Support Village planning initiatives by advancing catalytic projects identified in Village plans. 
• Provide for the development of public amenities or infrastructure. 
• Encourage development projects that enhance the streetscape and pedestrian experience and improve 

the vitality of commercial districts by adding interest and activity on the first floor of mixed-use buildings 
and parking facilities.  



Village of East Dundee, Illinois 

2 

Program Eligibility 

All commercial property owners and business owners of properties within the Dundee Crossing Business District 
are eligible to apply for the DCCFIP. However, the following property owners are not eligible: 

• Property/business owners of properties or structures which are nonconforming uses according to the 
Village’s zoning code. 

• Property/business owners in default of any municipal fees or taxes or property taxes. 
• Property/business owners with outstanding building, zoning, property maintenance, or Village Code 

violations on any properties owned and/or occupied by them within the Village of East Dundee that 
would not otherwise be corrected by applying for the DCCFIP. 

• Property owners or properties who have received Commercial Façade Improvement Program funding in 
the past 7 years. 

• Property owners who are Village officials or employees of the Village of East Dundee. 
 
Eligible projects must meet the following expectations: 

• Project must serve at least two of the program goals (listed in the program goals section). 
• All contractors and work performed must be in compliance with all current building and zoning 

requirements. 
 
Program Qualifications 

The following projects or expenses are eligible for program reimbursement: 

• Restoration of brick using a non-abrasive paint removal material (e.g. corn cob or walnut shell pieces, 
etc.) 

• Façade cleaning 
• New siding and siding repair 
• Front and wrap-around porches 
• Front patios and walkways 
• Decorative masonry walls 
• Exterior cornices 
• Exterior lighting 
• Fences  
• Landscaping retaining walls and improvements 
• Painting 
• Windows and doors 
• Tuckpointing 
• Pitched roofs 
• Awnings/canopies 
• Removal of inappropriate exterior finishes, materials, or features 
• Other improvements not specifically listed as eligible or ineligible and approved by the Village Board 

 
 
 
 



Village of East Dundee, Illinois 

3 

Ineligible Projects 
 
The following projects or expenses are not eligible for program reimbursement: 

 
• Building permit fees and related costs 
• Professional service fees including but not limited to design, engineering, architectural, and structural 

fees 
• Replacement of driveways 
• Replacement of sidewalks in the public right-of-way 
• Flat roofs 
• Landscaping 
• Painting masonry that was not previously painted 
• Sandblasting of brick 
• Acquisition of land and/or buildings 
• New construction 
• Any work not visible from the public right-of-way 
• Any work completed prior to receiving DCCFIP approval must have their application authorized to 

proceed by the Village Administrator 

Program Application Process 

Property owners seeking DCCFIP grant funding shall apply as follows: 

• Commercial property owners and businesses within the Village’s Dundee Crossings Business 
Development District are encouraged to submit a completed application by 4:00 p.m. on Friday, May 14. 
(electronic copies will not be accepted). Submit application to: 
 

Jennifer Johnsen, Village Administrator 
  Village of East Dundee 
  120 Barrington Avenue 
  East Dundee, Illinois 60118 
 

• Application Checklist: The following items must be attached to your application. Applications will be 
considered incomplete until all of the items have been received. 

o Complete DCCFIP application 
o Proof of ownership 
o Proof of property taxes paid 
o Historic District Certificate of Appropriateness or application (if applicable) 
o Photos of commercial structure to be improved 
o Detailed description and sketch/rendering of the work to be performed  

(including building materials and color scheme) 
o Working architectural drawings, if requested. 
o Copies of a minimum of a 3 qualified bids for each portion of the project in which funding is 

being requested 
o Schedule of work to be completed 

 



Village of East Dundee, Illinois 

4 

Program Review and Approval Process 

Applications will be reviewed and approved according to the following process: 

• The Village will evaluate each application for its extent/scope of work proposed and its potential to 
contribute to the specified goals.   

• Following the review process, Village staff will recommend which applications should receive funding 
based upon the adopted budget.  

• The recommendation by Village staff will be provided to the Village Board for their consideration and 
approval in early summer. The Village of East Dundee retains the right to approve an entire request, 
portions thereof, or to deny the request or portion thereof. 

 
Program Reimbursement 

Project reimbursement will occur upon completion of the project and final inspection by the Village. If costs 
exceed the original estimates, the property owner will be responsible for the full amount of the excess. The 
Village will not reimburse more than the total amount specified in the letter of intent. If any work commences 
before Village Administrator authorization is granted, these costs will not be eligible for reimbursement. The 
following items must be submitted in order to process the reimbursement: 

• Letter requesting reimbursement 
• Final inspection(s) for permitted work 
• Final inspection DCCFIP verifying the work has been completed in accordance with the proposed project 
• Copies of all final invoices 
• Signed and notarized waiver(s) of lien on the property 
• Proof of payment (i.e. canceled check, credit card statement, receipt, etc.) 

 
Upon submittal of the following reimbursement materials, reimbursement will be placed on the warrant list for 
approval of the payment by the Village Board. Please note, this process can take up to 4 weeks. 

Program Penalties 

All applicants granted financial support are required to comply with all Village codes and ordinances. Failure to 
do so, as documented by citations issued by the Village of East Dundee, will subject that awardee to all 
applicable fines and penalties allowable under Village code including a reduction in DCCFIP grant funding in part 
or in full.  Any intentional removal or modification to façade improvement within three years, which is not in 
accordance with the approved project, will require reimbursement of awarded funds.  

Questions 

Interested property owners are encouraged to contact the Village prior to submitting an application or for any 
questions about the program. Inquires can be directed to Jennifer Johnsen, Village Administrator, at (847) 426-
2822 x6120 or jjohnsen@eastdundee.net. 

 

 

 



Village of East Dundee, Illinois 

5 

Dundee Crossings Business Development District 

The commercial property must be within the Dundee Crossings Business District to be qualified for DCCFIP grant 
funding.  Please refer to the blue shaded area on the map below or by visiting: 
https://cms9files.revize.com/eastdundeeil/How%20Do%20I/Find/Maps/Business%20Development%20District
s%20Map%202013.pdf.   

 

https://cms9files.revize.com/eastdundeeil/How%20Do%20I/Find/Maps/Business%20Development%20Districts%20Map%202013.pdf
https://cms9files.revize.com/eastdundeeil/How%20Do%20I/Find/Maps/Business%20Development%20Districts%20Map%202013.pdf


Village of East Dundee, Illinois 

6 

 

Village of East Dundee 

Dundee Crossings Commercial Façade Improvement Program (DCCFIP) Application 
Submit completed application by 4:00 p.m. on Friday, May 14 

 
Property Owner: ______________________________________________________________________________ 

Address:  ______________________________________________________________________________ 
   Street     City    State  Zip 
 
Historic District:  Yes No  (Circle One) 

Phone Number:    _______________________  Email: _____________________________________________ 

Proposed Project: ______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Project Budget:  __________________________            Reimbursement Request: __________________________ 

Proposed Contractor(s): ______________________________________________________________________________ 

   ______________________________________________________________________________ 

Required Attachments (Check all attached documents): 

� Complete DCCFIP Application 
� Proof of ownership  
� Proof of property taxes paid 
� Historic District Certificate of Appropriateness (if applicable) 
� Photos of residential structure to be improved 
� Detailed description and sketch/rendering of the work to be performed  

(including building materials and color scheme) 
� Working architectural drawings, if requested 
� Copies of a minimum of a 3 qualified bids for each portion of the project in which funding is being requested 
� Schedule of work to be completed 

 

Applicant Signature: ______________________________________________ Date:  ___________________ 

 
Village Official Use 

 
Date Received:  __________________ Application Complete: Yes  No (Circle One) 

Official Signature: _________________________________________________________________   

Kathleen Bergeron
Kathleen Bergeron

Kathleen Bergeron
217 Barrington Ave

Kathleen Bergeron
East Dundee

Kathleen Bergeron
IL

Kathleen Bergeron
60118

Kathleen Bergeron
847-420-4334

Kathleen Bergeron
KathBuccibergeron@gmail.com

Kathleen Bergeron
Louvered Roof Pergola

Kathleen Bergeron
$70,000-$100,000.00

Kathleen Bergeron
Full Amount

Kathleen Bergeron
UnderCover Outdoors

Kathleen Bergeron
EDG Patio and Shade, Drajo Contracting and Design

Kathleen Bergeron


Kathleen Bergeron
4-28-21

Kathleen Bergeron




 
Paid on
07/30/2020

$0.00
 + BACK TAX / FORF AMOUNT

Rate 2018 Taxing District Tax 2019Rate 2019Tax 2018

KANE COUNTY $73.680.2985860.000000 $0.00

KANE COUNTY PENSION $18.590.0753160.000000 $0.00

KANE FOREST PRESERVE $38.170.1547200.000000 $0.00

KANE FOREST PRESERVE PENSION $0.040.0001340.000000 $0.00

DUNDEE TOWNSHIP $17.970.0728100.000000 $0.00

DUNDEE TWP ROAD DIST $21.710.0879790.000000 $0.00

DUNDEE TWP ROAD DIST PENSION $0.920.0037210.000000 $0.00

EAST DUNDEE VILLAGE $0.000.0000000.000000 $0.00

EAST DUNDEE VILLAGE PENSION $151.710.6147600.000000 $0.00

DUNDEE SCHOOL DISTRICT 300 $1,314.815.3278280.000000 $0.00

DUNDEE SCHOOL DISTRICT 300 PENSION $37.010.1500000.000000 $0.00

ELGIN COLLEGE 509 $120.050.4864580.000000 $0.00

ELGIN COLLEGE 509 PENSION $0.010.0000380.000000 $0.00

DUNDEE TWP PARK DISTRICT $114.490.4639490.000000 $0.00

DUNDEE TWP PARK DISTRICT PENSION $13.280.0538100.000000 $0.00

FOX RIVER VALLEY PUBLIC LIBRARY $41.400.1677450.000000 $0.00

FOX RIVER VALLEY PUBLIC LIBRARY PENSION $1.470.0059650.000000 $0.00

EAST DUNDEE FIRE DISTRICT $246.040.9970120.000000 $0.00

EAST DUNDEE FIRE DISTRICT PENSION $22.750.0921770.000000 $0.00

EAST DUNDEE SSA 2 $0.000.0000000.000000 $0.00

EAST DUNDEE TIF 4 $7,687.280.0000000.000000 $0.00

TOTAL $9,921.389.0530080.000000 $0.00

 = CURRENT TAX

 = NET TAXABLE VAL.

 + FARM BUILDING

 + FARM LAND

 - SENIOR EXEMPTION

 - HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION

 = EQUALIZED VALUE

 x STATE MULTIPLIER

 = ASSESSED VALUE

 - HOME IMPROVEMENT / VET

 + BUILDING VALUE

 LAND VALUE

 FAIR CASH VALUE

 TIF BASE

Late Payment Schedule

*$RE03233030171$*
4,960.69

0323303017100000000000601205

 = TOTAL TAX DUE

Sold at Tax Sale

 - OTHER EXEMPTIONS

0.00

0.00

0.00

109,592.00

9.053008

$9,921.38

$0.00

$0.00

$9,921.38

 x TAX RATE

 - ENTERPRISE ZONE

24,678.00

328,809.00

23,699.00

85,893.00

0.00

109,592.00

1.0000

109,592.00

0.00

0.00

03-23-303-017

 

Tax Code  Acres

DU DU909

Township

 Forfeited Tax

9.053008

Tax Rate

 First Installment Tax

4,960.694,960.69

 Second Installment Tax

 Penalty  Penalty

 Other Fees Other Fees

Paid on
02/01/2021

Parcel Number

215 BARRINGTON AVE 

EAST DUNDEE, IL  60118

Mail To:

Property Location:

NEXT TREASURE LLC 

EAST DUNDEE IL  60118-1312

215 BARRINGTON AVE

$0.00

*$RE03233030172$*
4,960.69

0323303017200000000000901202

EAST DUNDEE IL  60118-1312

NEXT TREASURE LLC 
215 BARRINGTON AVE

EAST DUNDEE IL  60118-1312

NEXT TREASURE LLC 
215 BARRINGTON AVE

Payment on or after Oct 2, 2020: Please see Instructions on 
reverse side for LATE PAYMENTS.

Jun 2 Thru Jul 1

Jul 2 Thru Aug 1

Aug 2 Thru Sep 1

Sep 2 Thru Oct 1

Oct 2 Thru Oct 23

1st 2nd

Parcel Number: 03-23-303-017

03-23-303-017Parcel Number:

 + NON AD VALOREM TAX

$0.00
Paid on 
07/30/2020

Paid on 
02/01/2021

$4,960.69

$4,960.69

 Adjustment  Adjustment

2019 Kane County Real Estate Tax Bill
David J. Rickert, County Treasurer
719 S. Batavia Avenue, Bldg. A
Geneva, IL 60134

1st
2
0
1
9

2nd
2
0
1
9

1ST INSTALLMENT 2019

ADJUSTMENT

PENALTY

INSTALLMENT AMOUNT PAID

INSTALLMENT BALANCE DUE

2ND INSTALLMENT 2019

ADJUSTMENT

PENALTY

INSTALLMENT AMOUNT PAID

INSTALLMENT BALANCE DUE

**DUPLICATE**

Remove stub and remit with payment

**DUPLICATE**

Remove stub and remit with payment

DUE ON OR BEFORE 06/01/20

DUE ON OR BEFORE 09/01/20

 Kane County Treasurer

Make Checks Payable to: KANE COUNTY TREASURER

Please remit to: P.O. Box 4025, Geneva, IL 60134

 Kane County Treasurer

Make Checks Payable to: KANE COUNTY TREASURER

Please remit to: P.O. Box 4025, Geneva, IL 60134



QUESTIONS ON YOUR ASSESSMENT? 
PLEASE CALL YOUR TOWNSHIP ASSESSOR.

THIS IS YOUR TOTAL REAL ESTATE TAX BILL PAYABLE IN TWO INSTALLMENTS. THIS IS THE ONLY BILL YOU WILL RECEIVE.

 1.

 2.

QUESTIONS ON YOUR EXEMPTIONS OR THE BOARD OF REVIEW? 
PLEASE CALL THE SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTS AT (630) 208-3818.

FIND YOUR
TOWNSHIP ASSESSOR

Aurora Township (630) 896-7792

Batavia Township (630) 879-1323

Big Rock Township

Blackberry Township

(630) 556-4340

(630) 365-9109

Burlington Township (847) 683-2555

Campton Township (630) 513-5430

Dundee Township (847) 428-2634

Elgin Township

Geneva Township

(847) 741-5110

(630) 232-3600

Hampshire Township (847) 683-4480

Kaneville Township (630) 557-2858

Plato Township (847) 464-4221

Rutland Township

St. Charles Township

(847) 428-5219

(630) 584-2040

Sugar Grove Township (630) 466-5255

Virgil Township (815) 827-3383

 Last Name

 In Care of:

 Street or P.O. Box

 City and State                                                         Zip Code

 First Name  M.I.

Change of Mailing Address form. For Address change you must include Pin.

 Daytime Phone Number

 Signature Required                                                   Date

THE COUNTY TREASURER'S PHONE NUMBER IS (630)232-3565.
OUR WEB ADDRESS IS: kanecountytreasurer.org

QUESTIONS ON THE TAX RATES, LEVIES, BACK TAXES? PLEASE CALL 
THE COUNTY CLERK'S OFFICE AT (630) 232-5964.

 Last Name

 In Care of:

 Street or P.O. Box

 City and State                                                         Zip Code

 Daytime Phone Number

 First Name  M.I.

 Signature Required                                                   Date

Change of Mailing Address form. For Address change you must include Pin.

Township Sector Block Parcel

ParcelBlockSectorTownship

You may pay online at www.KaneCountyTreasurer.org.  E-check transactions are free.  There is a 2.35% convenience fee for credit card transactions and 1.19% for 
debit card transactions.  Please call for additional payment instructions.

You may pay by mail.  Keep the bottom portion of the statement for your records, but send the appropriate coupon and your check or money order payable to the 
KANE COUNTY TREASURER.

 3.

 4.

You may place your payment in the drive-up Drop Box located behind building (A) from May 1  - October 1.  The drop box will be closed for one week following the
second installment due date.

We do not hold post dated checks nor can we accept partial payments.  Parts of a month are computed as a whole month, until paid.  Delinquent taxes will be
published about 20 days after the second installment due date.  Additional costs and interest are added after Tax Sale or forfeiture.  A charge of $30 will be added for 
all payments returned to us by a financial institution and payment will be voided.

 5.

 6.
taxpayer incorrectly pays the wrong bill. If you sold this property please forward the tax bill to the new owner. 
Failure to receive a tax bill or receiving one late, for any reason, will not relieve the taxpayer from paying taxes or late penalties. The County Treasurer is not responsible if a 

NEW: Check and credit card payments (no cash) may also be made at the Kane County Clerk's
branch office located at 5 E. Downer, Suite F, in downtown Aurora.

LATE PAYMENTS - Payment of this bill after October 1, 2020 requires an additional $10 publication fee. Payments after October 16 must be with cashiers check, money
order, or cash (no business or personal checks). The last day to pay is by close of business 4:30 pm on October 23rd. Tax Sale will take place at 9 am on February 01, 2021.





Mockingbird

217 Barrington Avenue
East Dundee, IL 60118

Sundance Louvered Roof Proposal

April 21, 2021

This quote is for estimation purposes and is not a guarantee of cost for services. Quote is based on current information 
from manufacturer about the project requirements. Actual cost may change once project elements are finalized. Client 

will be notified of any changes in cost prior to them being incurred. 



SUNDANCE LOUVERED ROOF:



SITE PHOTO:



LAYOUT (UPDATED):



PROGRESSIVE MOTORIZED DROP DOWN SCREEN:



OUTDOOR HEATERS: BROMIC  TUNGSTEN



MOCKINGBIRD
217 Barrington Ave, East Dundee
4.21.21
28’ L x 27’ D 

Total Amount of Structure: 100% Total
Upon Order Placement: 50% of Total
Upon Start of Project: 30% of Total
Upon Completion of Project: 20% of Total

$104,174.70
$52,087.35
$31,252.41
$20,834.94

PAYMENT TERMS:

I have read and agree with the terms and conditions listed above.

Signature: ____________________________________

Customer Name:
Customer Address:

Date:
Dimensions:

QUANTITIES $ PER SQUARE FOOT TOTAL

SUNDANCE LOUVERED ROOF 
INSTALLED:

644 Square 
Feet $80.00 $51,520.00

COLUMNS/FOOTERS: 5 $795.00 $3,975.00

HEATERS INSTALLED:
-Tungsten Smartheat Electric 
Black:6Kw

8 $23,450.00

MOTORIZED SCREENS (8’x19’):
-Textilene 97
-Surface Mounted

1 $4,587.45 $4,587.45

MOTORIZED SCREENS (8’x14’):
-Textilene 97
-Surface Mounted

2 $3,991.05 $7,982.10

MOTORIZED SCREENS (10’x14’):
-Textilene 97
-Surface Mounted

2 $4,214.70 $8,429.40

MOTORIZED SCREENS (10’x8’):
-Textilene 97
-Surface Mounted

1 $3,480.75 $3,480.75

SHOP DRAWING: 1 $750.00 $750.00



EDG Patio & Shade
1802 Holian Drive, Spring Grove, IL 60081

Website: www.edgfurniture.com
Email: info@edgfurniture.com

Instagram: @edgpatioandshade
LinkedIn: EDG Patio & Shade



ESTIMATE

Mockingbird  Bar and Garden
217 Barrington Ave

East Dundee, IL 60118

DRA JO CONTRACTING & DESIGN, INC

Barrington, Il 60010

Phone: (847) 450-3779
Email: drajocontracting@gmail.com

Estimate # 000278

Date 04/24/2021

Description Quantity Rate Total

Louvered  Pergola System 1.0 $98,000.00 $98,000.00

Front of building facing Barrington Ave.  Build structure covering
roughly 20'x40' area (will measure and design structure  according
to building departments guidelines and  setbacks)
Louvered system to be full fictional and to be operated during any
weather  conditions 
In between each support post  will be retractable screens  to keep
the  bugs at bay.  (client can add curtains later for privacy if needed)
Structure includes cement piers for support and replacing brick
pavers where needed and where taking out
Cost includes all materials and labor

Electrical 1.0 $2,520.00 $2,520.00

Adding  proper out door circuits and power for louvered pergola 
Cost includes all material and labor

Heating elemnts 1.0 $7,000.00 $7,000.00

Added cost if desired
Two ceiling mounted heating elements for area
Running proper electrical and gas lines where needed
Cost includes all material and labor

Subtotal $107,520.00

Total $107,520.00

Page 1 of 2



By signing this document, the customer agrees to the services and conditions outlined in this
document.

Mockingbird  Bar and Garden

Page 2 of 2



Project: Installation of StruXure Louvered Roof System for 

outdoor patio area

We hereby propose to provide and install the following enhancements for the outdoor
patio area. Our proposal includes the following:

STRUXURE PIVOT LOUVERED ROOF $42,650
Frame: 3 zone StruXure Pivot model roof structure with moveable 
             louvers and built gutter system. (4) 6"x6" posts (3) 17' beam chase        
Size:  Per layout - 28' x 17'6" Aprox. 490 sq. ft. 
Operation: Motorized louvers with remote and wifi app control
Frame Color: White     Louver  Color: White
Installation: By UnderCover Outdoors
Warranty: Limitted lifetime warranty on all framework. 15 years on finish. 5 years
                on motor and electronics

STRUXURE SOLID PAN ROOF - Cover front door $5,600
Frame: 1 zone StruXure solid pan roof
             louvers and built gutter system.         
Size: 8' x 8'  
Frame Color: White     Roof Color: White
Installation: By UnderCover Outdoors
Warranty: Limitted lifetime warranty on all framework. 15 years on finish. 5 years
                on motor and electronics

RETRACTABLE SCREENS $21,984
Qty. 6
Size: Fit StruXure opennings to enclose space around dining area
Frame: 4.5" headbox with zippered fabric retention
Frame Color: Match StruXure
Operation: Motorized  with remote control & wifi app control 
Fabric Color: T.B.D.
Fabric: solid color Acrylic / Insect Mesh or SunTex 80/90/95 

East Dundee, IL 60118

PROPOSAL

800- 96- SHADE Date: 4/16/2021

Mokingbird Bar + Garden
217 Barrington Ave



 OUTDOOR HEATERS: $7,788

Qty.: 6
Make: Bromic Tungsten 6000W electric
Model: BH0620032 $999 ea.
Color: Black
Control: (2) #BH3130010 remote  switches $299 ea
Mount:  Ceiling Mount
Warranty: Limited Lifetime on heating element
Includes assembly and mounting of heaters, electrical connection not included.
Any requirted gas or electrical connections not included and will be quoted separate
from this proposal.

LED LIGHTING $3,695

Qty.92' Commercial waterproof perimeter rope $1,299
Qty.12' 9W floodlight $150ea.
Qty.1  300W power supply $249
Qty.1  100W power supply $149
Qty.1  Handheld remote with dimmer $198
Layout provided prior to installation
Warranty: 1 mfg. warranty

INSTALLATION Included

By UnderCover Outdoors, Inc. 
Estimated time frame
Roughly 10 - 11  weeks from order to finish
Material Order 8 weeks current StruXure lead time

This proposal incudes the following:
1. Complete installation of specified products in this proposal, including all freight to 
  jobsite address, insurance, materials,and aplicable taxes. Electrical hookup 
   to electric brought to pergola by others for fans,screens, heaters and LED lighting.
2. Construction drawings
3. 1 year labor warranty for all products

This proposal does NOT include the following:
1. Permits or related fees if necessary
    UnderCover Outdoor to provide and procure local city permit, to be billed at exact cost
2. Any electric work, or upgrade to electric service to support heaters, 
    fans, motors, screens or lighting. Any additional work provided by UnderCover Outdoors 
    will be quoted separate.
3. Any gas or electric line installation for outdoor heaters



Total amount of this proposal: $81,987

Terms of sale: 
50% down payment + engineering cost if required $40,994
30% upon delivery of materials $20,497
20% upon completion, final electrical hookup and sign off $20,496

All material are the property of UnderCover Outdoors until paid in full.

Due to the custom nature of the product, deposits are not refundable after the three day rescission period expires.

All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed in a workmanlike manner according to standard practices. Any alteration

or deviation from the above specifications involving extra costs will be executed only on written orders, and will become an extra charge over 

and above the estimate. All agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents or delays beyond our control. Owner to carry fire, tornado, and other

necessary insurance. Our workers are fully covered by Workman's Compensation Insurance.

We apreciate the opportunity to provide this proposal for your project and would look forward to  
working with you. Please do not hesitate to call with any questions.

Authorised Signature ____________________________________ Date        ________    

UnderCover Outdoors, Inc.

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL

The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are authorized to do the work as specified.

Payments will be made as outlined.

Authorized Signature______________________________  Date__________________

Note: this proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted within 90 days.

You, the buyer may cancel this transaction at any time prior to the third business day after the date of this transaction.

All material are the property of UnderCover Outdoors until paid in full.

Due to the custom nature of the product, deposits are not refundable after the three day rescission period expires.

All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed in a workmanlike manner according to standard practices. Any alteration

or deviation from the above specifications involving extra costs will be executed only on written orders, and will become an extra charge over 

and above the estimate. All agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents or delays beyond our control. Owner to carry fire, tornado, and other

necessary insurance. Our workers are fully covered by Workman's Compensation Insurance.

www.undercoveroutdoors.com

UnderCover Outdoors, Inc.

7355 W 127th St.

Palos Heights, IL 60463

708-478-8870 Office    800-96-SHADE toll free    708-827-5817 Fax

http://www.undercoveroutdoors.com/
http://www.undercoveroutdoors.com/
http://www.undercoveroutdoors.com/
http://www.undercoveroutdoors.com/
http://www.undercoveroutdoors.com/
http://www.undercoveroutdoors.com/
http://www.undercoveroutdoors.com/
http://www.undercoveroutdoors.com/
http://www.undercoveroutdoors.com/
http://www.undercoveroutdoors.com/






www.undercoveroutdoors.com

UnderCover Outdoors, Inc.

7355 W 127th St.

Palos Heights, IL 60463

708-478-8870 Office    800-96-SHADE toll free    708-827-5817 Fax

http://www.undercoveroutdoors.com/
































































i\OUNDEE Village of East Dundee, Illinois 

Village of East Dundee 
Dundee Crossings Commercial Fa�ade Improvement Program (DCCFIP) Application 

Submit completed application by 4:00 p.m. on Friday, May 14 

Property Owner:

Address:
Street City State Zip

Historic District: � No (Circle One)

Phone Number: B'i 'l · J5L\·ac=ts<o Email:

Proposed Project:

Project Budget: Reimbursement Request: __________

Proposed Contractor(s): -------------------------------

Required Attachments (Check all attached documents):

- Complete DCCFIP Application
- Proof of ownership
- Proof of property taxes paid
- Historic District Certificate of Appropriateness (if applicable)
- Photos of residential structure to be improved
- Detailed description and sketch/rendering of the work to be performed

(including building materials and color scheme)
- Working architectural drawings, if requested
- Copies of a minimum of a 3 qualified bids for each portion of the project in which funding is being requested
- Schedule of work to be completed

Applicant Signature: Date:

.................................................................................................................................................................................. 
Village Official Use 

Date Received: Application Complete: Yes No (Circle One)

Official Signature:

6

$10,400 $5,200

SEE THE ATTACHED

Fall 2021

May 12, 2021

joe
Pencil

joe
Pencil





joe
Sticky Note
Current front



joe
Sticky Note
current back



Option 2: Black, Golden, Dark Grey

blade sign

joe
Sticky Note
Proposed front



314 North River Street | East Dundee IL 60118 
224 484 8858 | info@thedistancesocial.com

thedistancesocial.com

Proposed Contractors:

Painting:
Muscat Painting: $8,635
Rusty’s Painting: $4,900
JZ Painting Company: $6,800

Carpentry to fix/replace some wood: $750

Exterior Signage:
Sign A Rama: $5,749
SignFreaks: $5,500
Triangle Sign: $5,630







JZ Painting Company 
JERSON ZELAYA

ESTIMATE:

314 N. River Street
East Dundee, IL 60118
Contact: Joe Zeller
jzeller@zellermail.com

Work to be completed:

Power wash, scrape, re-caulk as necessary
Paint front and back, (2) coats. New colors.

Includes all materials

Estimated cost: $6,800

Terms: 50% down and balance upon completion.







joe
Highlight



iiDUNDEE Village of East Dundee, Illinois

Village of East Dundee
Dundee Crossings Commercial Facade Improvement Program (DCCFIP) Application

Submit completed application by 4:00 p.m. on Friday, May 14

l - w n * A / n o r - * ^ 0 ^ Z f i , I ^ i / V QProperty Owner:

A d d r e s s :

H is to r i c D is t r i c t :

Proposed Project:

/ O . S T ^ ^ T

S t r e e t

No {Circle One)

Rc- D2̂ \WV\

Project Budget:

P h o n e N u m b e r : E m a i l : ^ U e i ^ j e ^ X e U e / W X a T i ( . C OWA

P r o p o s e d P r o j e c t : 0 < » V « g r S
^ C l g g y y , - t "

L o o c O

Project Budget: IQ, OOP Reimbursement Request:
f . . < t 2 .

ProposedContractor(s): Ru^tnS Pa>\k>'thjc\ ; ' lAAu^CAT f^tUTtK^c;

2, 3€<iSorsi z.e«-A.yA

Required Attachments (Check all attached documents): ̂  'T€>0 • C: ST ̂  f,ô ^
/

Complete DCCFIP Application

Proof of ownership
— Proof of property taxes paid

Historic District Certificate of Appropriateness (if applicable)
— Photos of residential structure to be improved

— Detailed description and sketch/rendering of the work to be performed

(including building materials and color scheme)
— Working architectural drawings, if requested

Copies of a minimum of a 3 qualified bids for each portion of the project in which funding is being requested
— Schedule of work to be completed/ - |r A t- ^ OLO '3.1

Applicant Signature: Date: '^"•V

Date Rece ived :

Village Official Use

Application Complete: Yes No (Circle One)

Official Signature:

6

joe
Pencil



Repaint front and back of building in the same color scheme





2nd

2

0

2

0

Kane County Treasurer

Make Checks Payabte toiKane County Treasurer

P l e a s e r e m i t t o : P. O . B o x 4 0 2 5 G e n e v a I L 6 0 1 3 4 - 4 0 2 5

Pa r c e l N u m b e r : 0 3 - 2 3 - 3 1 0 - 0 0 2

C H A RT E R N AT I O N A L B A N K & T RU S T

TRUST 1691

% ZELLER LOUANN

1 8 N 1 6 0 N O RT H W I N D L A N E

D U N D E E I L 6 0 1 1 8 - 9 5 1 4

2 N D I N S TA L L M E N T 2 0 2 0

A D J U S T M E N T

P E N A L T Y

I N S T A L L M E N T A M O U N T P A I D

I N S T A L L M E N T B A L A N C E D U E

D U E O N O R B E F O R E 0 9 / 0 1 / 2 1

$3,979.64

$0.00

$3,979.64

Q 3 2 3 3 1 0 D 0 E S D 0 0 D 3 = } 7 R b M D = ] D l S 1 5

R e m ove s t u b a n d r e m i t w i t h p ay m e n t .

R a t e 2 0 1 9 Ta x 2 0 1 9 Ta x i n a D i s t r i c t R a t e 2 0 2 0 Ta x 2 0 2 0

0 . 2 9 6 5 8 6 $ 1 4 1 . 9 5 K A N E C O U N T Y 0 . 2 8 9 7 3 2 $ 1 3 7 . 7 4

0 . 0 7 5 3 1 6 S 3 5 . 8 0 K A N E C O U N T Y P E N S I O N 0 . 0 7 2 0 6 6 S 3 4 2 6

0 . 1 5 4 7 2 0 S 7 3 . 5 6 K A N E F O R E S T P R E S E R V E 0 . 1 4 7 6 1 6 $ 7 0 . 1 8

0 . 0 0 0 1 3 4 S 0 . 0 6 K A N E F C « E S T P R E S E R V E P E N S I O N 0 0 0 0 1 2 6 $ 0 0 6

0 . 0 7 2 8 1 0 S 3 4 . 6 2 D U N D E E T O W N S H I P 0 . 0 7 1 8 6 9 S 3 4 1 7

0 . 0 8 7 9 7 9 $ 4 1 . 6 3 D U N D E E T W P R O A D D I S T 0 . 0 8 6 2 4 1 $ 4 1 . 0 1

0 . 0 0 3 7 2 1 S 1 . 7 7 D U N D E E T W P R O A D D I S T P E N S I O N 0 . 0 0 3 6 4 9 SI .73

0 . 0 0 0 0 0 0 E A S T D U N D E E V I L L A G E 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 . 6 1 4 7 6 0 S 2 9 2 . 2 7 E A S T D U N D E E V I L L A G E P E N S I O N 0 . 6 0 6 4 5 8 $ 2 8 8 3 2

S . 3 2 7 8 2 8 S 2 . 5 3 2 . 9 6 . D U N D E E S C H O O L D I S T R I C T 3 0 0 5 . 2 3 2 1 9 2 S 2 . 4 8 7 . 4 9

G 1 5 0 0 0 0 S 7 1 . 3 1 D U N D K S C H O O L D I S T R I C T 3 0 0 P E N S I O N 0 . 1 5 0 0 0 0 $ 7 1 . 3 1

0 . 4 6 6 4 5 6 $ 2 3 1 2 7 E L G I N C O L L E G E 5 0 9 0 4 4 3 6 1 9 $ 2 1 1 . 0 0

0 . 0 0 0 0 3 6 S 0 . 0 2 E L G I N C O L L E G E 5 0 9 P E N S I O N 0 . 0 0 0 0 3 6 $ 0 0 2

0 . 4 6 3 9 4 9 $ 2 2 0 . 5 7 D U N D E E T W P PA R K D I S T R I C T 0 . 4 4 6 7 9 3 S 2 1 2 4 1

0 . 0 5 3 8 1 0 S 2 5 . 5 8 D U N D E E T W P PA R K D I S T R I C T P E N S I O N 0 . 0 2 8 1 6 1 $ 1 3 3 9

0 . 1 6 7 7 4 5 S 7 9 . 7 5 F O X R I V E R V A L L E Y P U B U C U B R A R Y 0 . 1 7 0 4 8 0 S 8 1 . 0 5

0 . 0 0 5 9 6 5 S 2 . 8 4 FOX RIVER VALLEY PUBUC LIBRARY PEN 0 . 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 . 9 9 7 0 1 2 S 4 7 4 . 0 0 E A S T D U N D E E F I R E D I S T R I C T 0 . 9 2 8 3 4 1 $ 4 4 1 . 3 6

0 . 0 9 2 1 7 7 S 4 3 8 2 E A S T D U N D E E F I R E D I S T R I C T P E N S I O N 0 . 0 9 2 0 1 1 S 4 3 7 4

OODOOCO EAST DUNDEE SSA 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

O.OOOOOO $ 3 , 4 9 6 . 0 0 E A S T D U N D E E T I F 4 0 . 0 0 0 0 0 0 S 3 . 7 9 0 . 0 4

S T I f O t r ' P m O

2020 Kane County Real Estate Tax Bill

719 S. Batavia Avenue, BIdg. A

Geneva, IL 60134

9 . 0 5 3 0 0 8 S 7 . 7 9 9 . 9 8 T O T A L 8 . 7 6 9 S 9 2 $ 7 . 9 5 9 . 2 8

Pa r c e l N u m b e r

0 3 - 2 3 - 3 1 0 - 0 0 2
T I F B A S E

4 7 . 5 4 2 . 0 0

Late Payment Schedule

June 2 thru Jul 1

Jul 2 thru Aug 1

^ 2 thru Sepi 1
Sept 2 thru Oct 1

Oct 2 thru Oct 23

I 5 t

$4 ,039.33

$4,099.03

$4,158.72

$4,218.42

$4,278.11

2 n d

$4,039.33

$4,099.03

Payments on oraf ter Oct 2,2021: Please see

Instruct ions, on reverse side, for LATE PAYMENTS.

M a i l To :

CHARTER NATIONAL SANK & TRUST

T RU S T 1 6 9 1

% ZELLER LOUANN

18N160 NORTHWIND LANE

DUNDEE IL 60118-9514

Proper ty Location:
322 N RIVER ST

EAST DUNDEE. IL 60118

Township

D U

Ta x R a t e

8 . 7 6 9 5 9 2

Ta x C o d e

o u g o g

So ld a t Tax Sa le

F i rs t Ins ta l lmen t Tax

$ 3 , 9 7 9 . 6 4

Adjustment

Penalty

O t h e r Fe e s

To t a l D u e

D U E B Y 0 6 / 0 1 / 2 1

A c r e s

Fo r fe i t e d Ta x

S e c o n d I n s t a l l m e n t Ta x

$ 3 , 9 7 9 . 6 4

Adjustment

Penalty

O t h e r Fe e s

FA I R C A S H VA L U E

To t a l D u e

D U E B Y 0 9 / 0 1 / 2 1

2 7 2 , 3 0 7 . 0 0

L A N D V A L U E

9 .362 .00

• f B U I L D I N G VA L U E

8 1 . 3 9 8 . 0 0

- H O M E I M P R O V E M E N TA / E T

0 . 0 0

3 A S S E S S E D V A L U E

9 0 . 7 6 0 . 0 0

X S TAT E M U LT I P L I E R

1 . 0 0 0 0 0 0

° E O U A U Z E O V A L U E

9 0 . 7 6 0 . 0 0

- H O M E S T E A D E X E M P T I O N

0 . 0 0

• S E N I O R E X E M P T I O N

0 . 0 0

• O T H E R E X E M P T I O N S

0 . 0 0

* F A R M L A N D

0 . 0 0

* F A R M B U I L D I N G

0 . 0 0

" N E T T A X A B L E V A L

9 0 . 7 6 0 . 0 0

X TA X R AT E

8 . 7 6 9 5 9 2

» C U R R E N T TA X

$ 7 , 9 5 9 , 2 8

• » N O N AO VA L O R E M TA X

SO.OO

• B A C K T A X / F O R F A M T

SO.OO

• E N T E R P R I S E Z O N E

$ 0 . 0 0

» T O T A L T A X D U E

$7,959.28

joe
Highlight



First A■erican Bank 

Dundee 
Drawer 6696 
05/07/21 

Tran 8 
9:34 AM 

RE Tax Pmt Receipt 
Account# ************0000 

Balance 
Amount 
Cash Back 

N/A 
3979,64 

,00 

Call 847-586-2401 for great loan rates, 







JZ Painting Company 
JERSON ZELAYA

ESTIMATE:

322 N. River Street
East Dundee, IL 60118
Contact: Joe Zeller
jzeller@zellermail.com

Work to be completed:

Power wash, scrape, re-caulk as necessary
Paint siding from front to back, (2) coats. Match existing colors.

Includes all materials

Estimated cost: $9,780

Terms: 50% down and balance upon completion.



 

 
Memorandum 

 
TO:  Village President and Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Schenita Stewart 

Deputy Chief of Police 

DATE:  May 13, 2021 

RE:  Consideration of Authorization to Purchase two 2021 Ford Utility  
  Police Interceptor Vehicles for the Police Department and Declaring one 2015  
  Ford Interceptor and one 2016 Ford Interceptor as Surplus. 
 

Staff requests Village Board consideration of authorizing the purchase of two 2021 Ford Utility 
Police Interceptor vehicles for the Police Department and declaring one 2015 Ford Interceptor and 
one 2016 Ford Interceptor as surplus.  This request is $22,403.06 over budget due to both new 
vehicles needing updated in-car video recording systems, computer tablets and equipment.    There 
is currently $786,678 of excess reserves that were restricted for and are to be transferred to Capital 
Projects as part of the approval of the Village’s Fiscal Year 2022 Budget to cover this budget 
overage.   
 
Background and Analysis: 
The Village’s FY 2022 Budget includes $89,152 for the purchase of two replacement patrol 
vehicles for the Police Department.  These vehicles were originally slated to be replaced in 
2020; however, the purchases were deferred to Fiscal Year 2022 due to pandemic-related 
budget constraints.  In consideration of replacing vehicles in the existing fleet, the Department 
determined that the following vehicles are due for replacement: 

 
Vehicle 

No. 
Make & 
Model Year Age Mileage Repairs Needed Repair Cost 

33 Ford 
Interceptor 2015 6 139,565 -Complete engine 

replacement 
$6,670 

35 Ford 
Interceptor 2016 5 111,348 

-Purge valve 
-Water pump 

-Fix coolant leak 
-Diagnose and fix 
overheating codes 

Starting at 
$2,500 

 
The annual fleet assessment objectively considers replacement factors such as mileage, service 
history, wear and tear, and repair frequency.  The current fleet has been diminished due to these 
vehicles needing extensive repairs.  Squad #33 is currently out of service due to the needed engine 



repairs which are not cost effective.  The replacement of these vehicles will return the fleet to the 
designated size. 
 
Both Squad #33 and #35 need updated in-car video recording systems and computer tablets.  The 
current in-car video system is out of warranty and does not record in high definition.  Additionally, 
the current computer tablets are out of warranty and need to be replaced for adequate processing 
power and to allow support for future updates.  
 
In addition to the purchase price of the vehicles, the fiscal year 2022 Budget includes funds for 
emergency equipment installation and vehicle markings/graphics for both vehicles.  Due to a 
design change by Ford, the Department is unable to repurpose existing vehicle equipment.  This 
aspect of the vehicle purchases will fall within the Village Administrator’s purchasing authority; 
if it does not, staff will seek Village Board approval prior to moving forward. 
 
The following is a summary of the costs associated with both 2021 Ford Utility Police Interceptors 
staff is recommending:     
 

Description Vendor Cost 
2021 Ford Utility Police 
Interceptor Vehicles  
(QTY 2) 

Currie Motors $70,518 

Squad Emergency 
Equipment Ultra Strobe Communications Inc. $25,228.56 

Flashback HD In-Car Video 
System Safe Fleet $11,140.50 

Graphics Eby Graphics  $1,350.00 
Computer Tablets Helping Hand IT $3,318.00 
 Total $111,555.06 

 
The following table summarizes the appropriation of funds in the FY2022 Budget.   
 

   Fund Account No.  Amount Appropriated 
Capital Outlay  32-21-5942 $89,152 
 Total $89,152 

 
Action Requested: 
If the Village Board concurs with this recommendation, the following motion would be 
appropriate:  Motion to authorize the purchase of two 2021 Ford Utility Police Interceptor 
Vehicles complete with vehicle and emergency equipment in the amount of $111,555.06. 
 
Attachments: 
Suburban Purchasing Cooperative: 2021 Ford Interceptor Contract 
Ultra Strobe Communications Inc. Estimate (Equipment for Two Vehicles) 
Safe Fleet Quote (Flashback HD In-Car Video Systems for Two Vehicles) 
Helping Hand IT Quote (Computer Hardware – Surface Pro – Service) 



Eby Graphics, Inc. Estimate 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
Schenita Stewart 
Deputy Chief of Police 
 
 
cc: Jennifer Johnsen, Village Administrator 
 Brandiss Martin, Finance Director/Treasurer  



































 473139_1 1

ORDINANCE NUMBER 21 - __ 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE VILLAGE OF EAST DUNDEE, COOK  
AND KANE COUNTIES, ILLINOIS, APPROVING AN AT-WILL  

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR 

WHEREAS, the Village of East Dundee (“Village”) is a home rule unit of local 
government pursuant to Section 6 of Article VII of the Constitution of the State of Illinois, 
and has the authority to exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its 
government and affairs; and  

WHEREAS, in Ordinance No. 17-24, titled “An Ordinance of the Village of East 
Dundee, Cook and Kane Counties, Illinois Approving the Village of East Dundee 
Employment Agreement for the Village Administrator,” the Village President and Board 
of Trustees approved an employment agreement with Village Administrator Jennifer 
Johnsen (“Former Employment Agreement”) for a period of four (4) years, from May 1, 
2017 through April 30, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, while the Former Employment Agreement expired on May 1, 2021, 
and while Village Administrator Johnsen’s term of office as Village Administrator has 
expired, Village Administrator Johnsen continues to be employed by the Village and to 
serve as the Village Administrator on an at-will basis; and 

WHEREAS, the Village President has not appointed a person to fill the office of 
Village Administrator at this time; and 

WHEREAS, the Village President and Board of Trustees desire to approve the 
“At-Will Employment Agreement for the Village Administrator” attached hereto as 
EXHIBIT A, and made a part hereof, by and between the Village and Village 
Administrator Jennifer Johnsen (“New Employment Agreement”), which sets forth the 
terms of Village Administrator Johnsen’s continued employment with the Village on an 
at-will basis; and 

WHEREAS, the New Employment Agreement does not create, extend or modify 
any term of office for the Village Administrator; and 

WHEREAS, the Village has the authority to approve the New Employment 
Agreement pursuant to its home rule authority and 65 ILCS 5/8-1-7(b); and 

WHEREAS, the Village President and Board of Trustees have determined that 
entering into the New Employment Agreement best serves the Village, its residents and 
the public’s health, safety and welfare;  



 473139_1 2 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT AND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF EAST DUNDEE, COOK AND KANE 
COUNTIES, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS:  

 
SECTION 1: Incorporation. That the recitals above shall be and are hereby 

incorporated in this Section 1 as if restated herein. 
 
 SECTION 2: Approval and Execution. That the Village President and Board of 
Trustees approve the New Employment Agreement, authorize the execution of the New 
Employment Agreement, and direct the Village President and the Village Clerk, or their 
designees, to execute the New Employment Agreement, along with all other 
instruments and documents that are necessary to fulfill the Village’s obligations under 
the New Employment Agreement. The Village President and Board of Trustees 
authorize and direct Village staff to comply with all of the applicable obligations of the 
Village under the New Employment Agreement. 

 
SECTION 3: Severability. That if any Section, paragraph or provision of this 

Ordinance shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or 
unenforceability of such Section, paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the 
remaining provisions of this Ordinance. 

 
SECTION 4:  Repeal. That all ordinances, resolutions, motions or parts thereof 

in conflict with this Ordinance shall be and the same are hereby repealed. 
 
 SECTION 5: Effect. That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its 
adoption, approval and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law.  
 
 
 ADOPTED this 7th day of June, 2021 pursuant to a roll call vote as follows:  
 
AYES:________________________________________________________________  
 
NAYES:_______________________________________________________________  
 
ABSENT:______________________________________________________________ 
 
 APPROVED by me this 7th day of June, 2021. 
 
 
     ________________________________________  
     Jeffrey Lynam, Village President  
 
ATTEST:  
 
___________________________  
Katherine Diehl, Village Clerk  



 473139_1 3 

 
Published in pamphlet form this 7th day of June, 2021, under the authority of the Village 
President and Board of Trustees.  
 
Recorded in the Village records on June ___, 2021. 
  



 473139_1 4 

EXHIBIT A 
 

AT-WILL EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR 
 

(attached) 



VILLAGE OF EAST DUNDEE Warrant Report June 7, 2021 - FY21 Page:     1

Report dates: 5/18/2021-6/7/2021 Jun 04, 2021  09:09AM

Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Voided GL Account Number

Invoice Amount

ACTIVE EXCAVATING AND WRECKING, INC.

11326 STORM SEWER VAC 05/20/2021 320.00 01-31-5140

11326 WATER SERVICE REPAIR 05/20/2021 5,228.00 60-33-5140

          Total ACTIVE EXCAVATING AND WRECKING, INC.: 5,548.00

AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISHING CORPORATION

5406 CODES & ORDINAN                                    12/16/2020 10.00 01-12-5260

          Total AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISHING CORPORATION: 10.00

AT&T

051321 SEWER AT&T                                         05/13/2021 230.93 60-33-5320

          Total AT&T: 230.93

GEN POWER

RSA003752-1 GENERATOR RENTAL - PRAIRIE  05/19/2021 925.00 60-33-5530

          Total GEN POWER: 925.00

ILLINOIS STATE POLICE BUREAU OF ID

040121 LIQUOR APPLICATIO                                  04/01/2021 28.25 01-12-5290

          Total ILLINOIS STATE POLICE BUREAU OF ID: 28.25

KLEIN, THORPE AND JENKINS, LTD

217855,217762 PROF SERV GEN 05/17/2021 10,365.50 01-12-5230

217855,217762 POLICE LEGAL SERV                                  05/17/2021 3,182.00 01-21-5230

217855,217762 TIF #4 - CHRISTINA AVE 05/17/2021 198.00 36-01-5230

217855,217762 TIF #6 - RTE 25 S 05/17/2021 198.00 46-01-5230

          Total KLEIN, THORPE AND JENKINS, LTD: 13,943.50

MOTOROLA  SOLUTIONS, INC

8281169867 ANT 04/28/2021 131.95 01-21-5640

          Total MOTOROLA  SOLUTIONS, INC: 131.95

WAGEWORKS, INC

INV2784205 HEALTHCARE BENEFIT 05/17/2021 158.00 01-12-5060

          Total WAGEWORKS, INC: 158.00

WAL-MART COMMUNITY

1635642418 EDPD OFFICE SUPPL                                  05/07/2021 183.29 01-21-5610

          Total WAL-MART COMMUNITY: 183.29

          Grand Totals:  21,158.92



VILLAGE OF EAST DUNDEE Warrant Report June 7, 2021 - FY22 Page:     1

Report dates: 5/18/2021-6/7/2021 Jun 04, 2021  09:10AM

Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Voided GL Account Number

Invoice Amount

AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISHING CORPORATION

8396 INTERNET RENEWAL                                   05/14/2021 495.00 01-12-5260

          Total AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISHING CORPORATION: 495.00

AMS MECHANICAL SYSTEMS, INC.

47991-1 REPAIR ON AHU  05/19/2021 855.00 01-21-5121

          Total AMS MECHANICAL SYSTEMS, INC.: 855.00

B&F CONSTRUCTION CODE SERVICES INC

56303 PLUBMING PLAN REVIEW 05/17/2021 200.00 01-25-5290

56303 EXPRESS FEE 05/17/2021 300.00 01-25-5290

56317 PLUMBING PLAN REVIEW 05/18/2021 200.00 01-25-5290

          Total B&F CONSTRUCTION CODE SERVICES INC: 700.00

BARRY ROSNTHAL

BSE65927 PERFORMANCE 05/20/2021 1,500.00 01-37-5290

          Total BARRY ROSNTHAL: 1,500.00

BATTERIES PLUS

P40086642 PORTABLE GENERATOR BATTE 05/26/2021 84.95 01-31-5130

          Total BATTERIES PLUS: 84.95

BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD

060121 BCBS ADMIN 06/01/2021 3,955.91 01-12-5060

060121 BCBS FIN 06/01/2021 1,543.45 01-14-5060

060121 BCBS PD 06/01/2021 18,103.95 01-21-5060

060121 BCBS BLDG 06/01/2021 1,575.71 01-25-5060

060121 BCBS PW 06/01/2021 4,949.52 01-31-5060

060121 BCBS EMP CONTRIB 06/01/2021 1,466.83 27-01-2207

060121 BCBS RETIREES 06/01/2021 6,448.78 27-01-2210

060121 BCBS WTR/SWR 06/01/2021 7,949.42 60-33-5060

          Total BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD: 45,993.57

CASSIDY TIRE & SERVICE

122002138 MOWER TIRE 05/11/2021 15.00 01-31-5130

          Total CASSIDY TIRE & SERVICE: 15.00

CEDAR PATH NURSERIES

1923730 PARKWAY PLANTS 05/18/2021 84.00 01-31-5110

1924106 DEPOT PLANTS 05/24/2021 28.00 01-31-5110

          Total CEDAR PATH NURSERIES: 112.00

CENTURY SPRINGS

2689105 WATER - PD                                         05/14/2021 21.38 01-21-5630

          Total CENTURY SPRINGS: 21.38

COMCAST

051421 COM MONTHLY SERVICE 05/14/2021 403.35 01-12-5320



VILLAGE OF EAST DUNDEE Warrant Report June 7, 2021 - FY22 Page:     2

Report dates: 5/18/2021-6/7/2021 Jun 04, 2021  09:10AM

Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Voided GL Account Number

Invoice Amount

051421 PD COMCAST                                         05/14/2021 12.63 01-21-5320

          Total COMCAST: 415.98

COOK COUNTY CLERK

050721 NOTARY                                          05/07/2021 10.00 01-21-5630

          Total COOK COUNTY CLERK: 10.00

DOWN TO EARTH LANDSCAPING

62767 MULCH                                             05/25/2021 168.00 01-31-5110

62768 MULCH                                             05/25/2021 168.00 01-31-5110

62766 TOP SOIL                                          05/25/2021 84.00 01-31-5150

          Total DOWN TO EARTH LANDSCAPING: 420.00

DW-SERVANT FUND (EAST DUNDEE) LLC

1 052521 BDD REV DUNDEE GATEWAY O 05/25/2021 4,166.67 33-01-5876

          Total DW-SERVANT FUND (EAST DUNDEE) LLC: 4,166.67

EAST DUNDEE, PETTY CASH - VH

05202021 2021 Community Events Petty Ca 05/20/2021 1,000.00 01-37-5631

          Total EAST DUNDEE, PETTY CASH - VH: 1,000.00

FERGUSON WATERWORKS #2516

0390814 WATER METER 250 PATRICIA 05/13/2021 1,491.26 60-33-5934

          Total FERGUSON WATERWORKS #2516: 1,491.26

FLUID TECHNOLOGIES PUMPS & CONTROLS, INC

210381 REPAIR PRV - MAIN ST 05/17/2021 1,737.03 60-33-5140

          Total FLUID TECHNOLOGIES PUMPS & CONTROLS, INC: 1,737.03

HAWKINS, INC.

4939068 WW CHEMICALS                                       05/11/2021 3,349.48 60-33-5651

          Total HAWKINS, INC.: 3,349.48

HELPING HAND IT

21-37479 IT SERVICES 05/17/2021 687.50 01-12-5286

          Total HELPING HAND IT: 687.50

HOME DEPOT

5014587 VH BREAK ROOM 05/07/2021 9.70 32-15-5948

          Total HOME DEPOT: 9.70

ILLINOIS CITY/COUNTY MANAGEMENT

2021-2022 ILCMA BJM                             05/20/2021 240.00 01-14-5410

          Total ILLINOIS CITY/COUNTY MANAGEMENT: 240.00



VILLAGE OF EAST DUNDEE Warrant Report June 7, 2021 - FY22 Page:     3

Report dates: 5/18/2021-6/7/2021 Jun 04, 2021  09:10AM

Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Voided GL Account Number

Invoice Amount

ILLINOIS PUBLIC RISK FUND

65663 W/C ADMIN 07/01/2021 580.73 01-12-5520

65663 W/C FIN 07/01/2021 435.55 01-14-5520

65663 W/C PD 07/01/2021 2,372.76 01-21-5520

65663 W/C BLDG 07/01/2021 290.37 01-25-5520

65663 W/C W/S 07/01/2021 441.30 01-31-5520

65663 W/C PW 07/01/2021 420.29 60-33-5520

          Total ILLINOIS PUBLIC RISK FUND: 4,541.00

M & A PRECISION TRUCK REPAIR

17962 SAFETY LANE.                                     05/12/2021 126.00 01-31-5120

          Total M & A PRECISION TRUCK REPAIR: 126.00

MIDWEST MATERIAL MANAGEMENT

MM-81382 MIXED C&D 05/15/2021 124.85 01-31-5570

          Total MIDWEST MATERIAL MANAGEMENT: 124.85

MIDWEST SALT

P457841 WATER SOFTNER SALT 05/17/2021 2,668.00 60-33-5650

P457841 WATER SOFTNER SALT 05/17/2021 802.70- 60-33-5650

          Total MIDWEST SALT: 1,865.30

ORANGE CRUSH

87405 ASPHALT                                           05/20/2021 14.31 15-01-5950

87609 ASPHALT                                           05/26/2021 16.64 15-01-5950

          Total ORANGE CRUSH: 30.95

PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL GROUP

051721 PRINCIPAL ADMIN 05/17/2021 329.76 01-12-5060

051721 PRINCIPAL FIN 05/17/2021 143.80 01-14-5060

051721 PRINCIPAL PD 05/17/2021 1,417.68 01-21-5060

051721 PRINCIPAL BLDG 05/17/2021 130.22 01-25-5060

051721 PRINCIPAL PW 05/17/2021 416.21 01-31-5060

051721 PRIN EMPLOYEE VISION 05/17/2021 528.46 27-01-2207

051721 PRINCIPAL EMPL DENTAL 05/17/2021 1.02 27-01-2208

051721 PRINCIPAL WTR/SWR 05/17/2021 653.30 60-33-5060

          Total PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL GROUP: 3,620.45

PROSHRED SECURITY

990085871 SHRED EVENT                                        05/15/2021 750.00 01-37-5290

          Total PROSHRED SECURITY: 750.00

RDS Concrete, LLC

051721VILED APRON REPAIR W/M BREAK 05/17/2021 2,700.00 60-33-5140

          Total RDS Concrete, LLC: 2,700.00

SARGENTS EQUIPMENT REPAIR

WG04524 REPAIR TRAILER 05/18/2021 532.43 01-31-5120



VILLAGE OF EAST DUNDEE Warrant Report June 7, 2021 - FY22 Page:     4

Report dates: 5/18/2021-6/7/2021 Jun 04, 2021  09:10AM

Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Voided GL Account Number

Invoice Amount

          Total SARGENTS EQUIPMENT REPAIR: 532.43

SECRETARY OF STATE INDEX DEPARTMENT

MAGNUSON NOTARY RENEWAL                                     05/20/2021 10.00 01-21-5630

RITTER NOTARY RENEWAL                                     05/20/2021 10.00 01-21-5630

          Total SECRETARY OF STATE INDEX DEPARTMENT: 20.00

SERVICE PRINTING CORPORATION

31191 BUS. MAP POSTCARD                                  05/17/2021 235.00 01-37-5340

          Total SERVICE PRINTING CORPORATION: 235.00

STAPLES ADVANTAGE

8062281710 OFFICE SUPPLIES PD 05/15/2021 70.38 01-21-5610

          Total STAPLES ADVANTAGE: 70.38

THOMPSON ELEVATOR SERVICE

21-1324 ELEVATOR INSP VIL GRN 05/11/2021 150.00 01-01-1112

21-1324 ELEVATOR INSP ED 05/11/2021 50.00 01-21-5130

          Total THOMPSON ELEVATOR SERVICE: 200.00

UAP ENTERPRISES

022621 - 1 PERFORMANCE 02/26/2021 1,300.00 01-37-5290

          Total UAP ENTERPRISES: 1,300.00

WATER PRODUCTS COMPANY-AURORA

0302476-0507 MISC HYDRANT REPAIR PARTS 05/07/2021 1,728.00 60-33-5140

0302944-5/26/ B-BOX REPAIR, 406 RR 05/26/2021 84.50 60-33-5140

032909-52521 METER CONNECTION,                                  05/25/2021 253.40 60-33-5934

          Total WATER PRODUCTS COMPANY-AURORA: 2,065.90

WELCH BROTHERS, INC.

3130763 STORM SEWER REPAIR 05/25/2021 78.62 01-31-5140

          Total WELCH BROTHERS, INC.: 78.62

          Grand Totals:  81,565.40

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

Invoice.Batch = "FY22"


	Life Saving Award Officer Lawson.pdf
	Presented To

	BDD Facade Grant Agenda Item 6.7.21.pdf
	Background
	Applications Received
	Village Administrator Recommendation
	8587c77a-f8f8-452d-94a1-e945dc5403ae.pdf
	Background
	Applications Received
	Village Administrator Recommendation





